          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          8  (Held Jointly With)

             COMMITTEE ON SMALL BUSINESS

          9

             RE: DEPARTMENT OF SMALL BUSINESS

         10  SERVICES

         11  -------------------------------x

         12                 March 7, 2006

                            Start:  12:10 p.m.

         13                 Recess: 3:10 p.m.

         14                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         15                 New York, New York

         16

                  B E F O R E:

         17

                         THOMAS WHITE

         18                 Chairperson, Economic Development

                            Committee

         19

                         DAVID YASSKY

         20                 Chairperson, Small Business Committee

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             COUNCIL MEMBERS:

          4

             Diana Reyna

          5  Albert Vann

             David Weprin

          6  Letitia James

             Annabel Palma

          7  Gale Brewer

             Robert Jackson

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3  Robert W. Walsh

             Commissioner

          4  NYC Department of Small Business Services

          5  Andrew Schwartz

             First Deputy Commissioner

          6  NYC Department of Small Business Services

          7  Phyllis Atwater

             Certification Unit

          8  NYC Department of Small Business Services

          9  Kerri Jew

             Assistant Commissioner

         10  NYC Department of Small Business Services

         11  David Margalit

             Deputy Commissioner

         12  NYC Department of Small Business Services

         13  Chaz Ali

             Assistant Commissioner

         14  NYC Department of Small Business Services

         15  Carl Hum

             Director

         16  Mayor's Office of Industrial and Manufacturing

             Business

         17

             Timothy Johnson

         18  Director, Workforce Initiatives

             United Way of New York City

         19

             Constance Lesold

         20  Fire Committee

             Community Board No. 8, Brooklyn

         21

             Keith Gamble

         22  Board member

             Community Voices Heard

         23

             Nancy Biberman

         24  Founder and President

             Women's Housing and Economic Development

         25  Corporation, WHEDCO

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you. And as

          3  Commissioner Walsh, as you and your team: Take your

          4  seats, first let me greet you. Good afternoon. And I

          5  guess, let me apologize. I know this part of the

          6  hearing was scheduled well over an hour ago, so I

          7  appreciate that you've been sitting in the audience

          8  for an hour more than you planned to.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I wanted to see

         10  what Andy Alper was going to give me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Indeed. But I do

         12  appreciate your time. I have a number of questions

         13  that we will get into later. I will save questions

         14  for the question part. We want to hear your

         15  presentation about the SBS budget.

         16                 The one point I will make at the

         17  outset, is something that I would very much like to

         18  discuss with you, and if it's not covered in your

         19  prepared statement, that's fine, I can ask it as a

         20  question. But I do want to take up with you what I

         21  see is the increasingly pressing issue of the need

         22  to provide some assistance to small businesses with

         23  their health care expenses. I will just start by

         24  telling you, we had a roundtable the other day here,

         25  Chairman White and myself and Chairman Weprin, with
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          2  the Chambers of Commerce in various boroughs, and as

          3  you know, the subject that you and I have discussed

          4  or rather discussed with folks in your team, so you

          5  know my longstanding interest here, but unbidden by

          6  me, in the discussion about what their members, the

          7  small businesses of the City need, first it was the

          8  Manhattan Chamber of Commerce started by saying we

          9  did a survey of our members, and the single biggest

         10  need that they expressed to us in their survey is

         11  health care, and their inability to afford health

         12  care, and yet, the increasing demand from their

         13  workers that they do provide health care and their

         14  inability to get good workers without paying for

         15  health care.

         16                 And then it was very quickly echoed

         17  by the Brooklyn and Queens Chambers of Commerce that

         18  their membership felt exactly the same.

         19                 So, this is something that I want to

         20  take up with you, and I'll tell you right now that

         21  it is my goal in the budget process to secure

         22  significant funding for us to start helping the

         23  small businesses of this City with this need.

         24                 That's just something I'll just tell

         25  you at the outset, so you'll know that's something
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          2  I'd like to discuss, but I very much am looking

          3  forward to your presentation, your testimony. If

          4  it's not in here, that's fine. We can deal with it

          5  in the Q and A.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Commissioner,

          8  thank you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

         10                 My testimony says good morning,

         11  everyone, but I will change that to good afternoon

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: We will reflect

         14  that in the written testimony.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: To both Chairman

         16  White and Chairman Yassky, congratulations. And to

         17  the members of both committees, I'm Rob Walsh. I'm

         18  here joined by Andy Schwartz, our First Deputy

         19  Commissioner, and in the audience is staff that is

         20  available to answer questions from time to time and

         21  I'll probably be calling them up as we get into some

         22  of the specific questions, whether it's involving

         23  women-owned business programs or workforce

         24  development or some of the other issues that we're

         25  dealing with.
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          2                 I'd have to say, in putting this

          3  testimony together, I looked back at the last four

          4  years, and working with this Council over the four

          5  years, we've seen some very dramatic changes in this

          6  agency. The improvements made over four years ago,

          7  it started with the Mayor changing the name of this

          8  agency, and giving us the mandate to squarely focus,

          9  and to focus on the needs of small businesses. And

         10  since then we've concentrated our efforts on

         11  becoming an organization that provides small

         12  business services that are meaningful, effective and

         13  efficient.

         14                 And what I would like to do today is

         15  give a snapshot of four major service areas of the

         16  agencies where we made significant accomplishments

         17  to date and then to set the stage to talk about some

         18  of the challenges that we have in the years ahead

         19  working together. And I'd like to start in the area

         20  of district development, and growing the Business

         21  Improvement Districts, enhancing our neighborhoods,

         22  building the capacity of our local organizations or

         23  community-based organizations.

         24                 One of the first areas I focus on,

         25  and partly because of my background with Business
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          2  Improvement Districts was to energize, if you will,

          3  and revitalize some of the Business Improvement

          4  Districts that were having a tough time. And what we

          5  also realized, if we had stronger Business

          6  Improvement Districts, this would help in us

          7  reaching out to small businesses throughout the

          8  City.

          9                 We needed to help BIDs form and grow,

         10  provide them space to meet on a regular basis, they

         11  meet in our offices on a regular basis, recognize

         12  the best practices among the Business Improvement

         13  Districts, encourage them to be creative, and mostly

         14  on our end is mostly to provide the technical

         15  assistance so they could be helping small

         16  businesses.

         17                 I'm proud to say that we've both

         18  energized and expand the largest networks of BIDs in

         19  the country. And I have to give credit where credit

         20  is due, if David Weprin was here, I would be

         21  thanking him, because he in the Finance Committee

         22  have been tremendous as many of you on the

         23  Committees.

         24                 I was with Gale Brewer just the other

         25  night up at Lincoln Square, which is one of the best

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  Business Improvement Districts in the City. We have

          3  created another nine BIDs in the past four years.

          4  Nine BIDS in four years, not bad, bringing the total

          5  up to 53.

          6                 And when you start thinking about

          7  what BIDs have done, and what they do every year,

          8  they provide $80 million in supplemental services,

          9  and they serve over 65,000 businesses throughout the

         10  City, it means cleaner sidewalks, it means safer

         11  streets, it means more attractive places to visit,

         12  shop and do business.

         13                 The tone and the encouragement and

         14  the support that this City has shown towards BIDs is

         15  the envy of neighborhood organizations across the

         16  country.

         17                 But our efforts can't stop there, and

         18  they won't stop there. We will continue to work with

         19  groups across the City who are looking to form BIDs.

         20  And one of my favorite has become Flatbush Junction,

         21  right outside of Brooklyn College, where we're

         22  working with the leadership of Brooklyn College and

         23  the Flatbush Development Corporation. We hope to see

         24  this BID proved in the spring, and what we're doing

         25  is basically putting people in the room together,
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          2  the new retail businesses that are coming in,

          3  Brooklyn College is investing in a big way with a

          4  new Performing Arts Center and a book store. We know

          5  that there's funds for streetscape improvement that

          6  EDC has set aside.  We're bringing DOT into the

          7  picture and creating a stronger community, and we're

          8  doing that time and time again, and over the next

          9  year, you could expect in addition to Flatbush

         10  Junction, you'll see BIDs in areas like Clinton Hill

         11  and Bayside and Sunnyside and Hunts Point, along

         12  Southern Boulevard, where there will be more

         13  Business Improvement Districts developed.

         14                 What does that mean? It means

         15  property owners getting together to make the

         16  neighborhood a better place.

         17                 In improving City neighborhoods,

         18  however, our role goes beyond just creating BIDs.

         19  We're working to support commercial revitalization.

         20  Business attraction, district marketing, streetscape

         21  enhancements and storefront improvement services.

         22                 In the past four years, commercial

         23  revitalization grants to a lot of grassroot

         24  organizations throughout the City have provided over

         25  $28 million to 100 or more organizations throughout
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          2  the City.

          3                 Our primary focus with this limited

          4  amount of dollars has been to improve the conditions

          5  that will in turn attract private investment, and to

          6  that end, what we've done recently is we have hired

          7  a Director of Retail Development whose job it is to

          8  work individually with community-based organizations

          9  throughout the City.

         10                 We now have on our staff, and people

         11  should know this, we have an expert that can walk

         12  around block-by-block, storefront-to-storefront that

         13  could help storefront owners improve their facades

         14  or the way they present their product in their

         15  windows.

         16                 We're doing this, we started, you

         17  know, one of the examples, I stopped in a conference

         18  room the other day, there were people from

         19  Ridgewood, Queens, looking at a block front where

         20  they're making improvements. And we're going to

         21  repeat this time and time again, as we go forward in

         22  using our community development block grant money.

         23                 We're also getting creative about the

         24  way we market the different districts. And one of

         25  our greatest strengths in this City is our subway
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          2  system. So, we approach the MTA, and we said we have

          3  an idea for a unique advertising marketing campaign;

          4  what if we market it, some of the neighborhoods,

          5  right on the placquards of the subways? We're going

          6  to start with the F line. The F line goes from

          7  Flushing all the way to Coney Island, and you can

          8  think of the neighborhoods from Flushing to

          9  Sunnyside and Jackson Heights and on through

         10  Chinatown and the neighborhood you're very familiar

         11  with on Smith Street and where we both live, and

         12  Ditmas Park and on through Coney Island.

         13                 If we could get the information about

         14  some of the unique settings in some of these

         15  neighborhoods, encourage people to get off the

         16  subway and visit places, this could be a great,

         17  great lift. The good news is the MTA's. The bad news

         18  is we have limited amount of funds for this, and my

         19  hope is that with this pilot phase with the F line,

         20  we'll be able to expand that to many other

         21  neighborhoods, and what we could do is advertise

         22  websites, people could download information about

         23  the different neighborhoods, and make things

         24  exciting and accessible for people, visitors, New

         25  Yorkers, to visit and shop.
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          2                 In addition to the District

          3  Management pieces, the Business Solutions efforts

          4  that we've made, and this is probably an area that

          5  we probably have made our greatest strides, in terms

          6  of providing business services.

          7                 When we came in four years ago, I put

          8  people in a room together, and I asked them what

          9  some of the greatest needs are, and whether it was

         10  in Brooklyn or the Bronx or Queens, we heard a

         11  number of different things.

         12                 We heard help us navigate government,

         13  and I think 3-1-1 has helped quite a bit in that

         14  area, no doubt, but we need more than just 3-1-1. We

         15  need people to be going out to our neighborhoods,

         16  and working with us.

         17                 The other was, we need access to

         18  capital. Many small businesses, entrepreneurs have

         19  been turned down by the traditional banks when

         20  they've gone for help, help us, help us team up with

         21  some non-profits, and the other was we want to do

         22  business with the City, you know, procurement

         23  opportunities in the City, what could we do.

         24                 The efforts we've made through New

         25  York City Business Solutions have made it easier for
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          2  businesses to start and navigate government. We

          3  strengthen our relationships, community

          4  organizations throughout the City, whether it's the

          5  BIDs, the merchants associations or the Chambers or

          6  the Local Development Corporations and Empire Zones.

          7                 We positioned ourselves to

          8  dramatically include and expand our business

          9  assistance efforts, from accessing finance to

         10  incentives to navigating government, help finding

         11  everything from real estate to qualified workers.

         12  New York City Business Solutions is now at the

         13  forefront of this effort, and through one of now

         14  seven centers throughout the five boroughs, and the

         15  use of 3-1-1, we've been able to outreach canvas

         16  throughout the five boroughs, and I want to share

         17  some numbers with you.

         18                 Since September 2004, Business

         19  Solutions has served more than 15,000 businesses,

         20  and has responded to over 25,000 service requests.

         21  Of these over a third of the concerns have been

         22  business planning and start-up questions, these are

         23  people who wanted to go into business.

         24                 Approximately a quarter are about

         25  financing and incentives, and about ten percent are
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          2  related to regulations. The rest are split between

          3  procurement, marketing, real estate workforce and

          4  other issues related to running a business.

          5                 The overreaching goal of New York

          6  City Business Solutions is to make it easier for

          7  businesses to start and grow in New York City.

          8                 One of the areas where we've been

          9  most effective is through connecting firms to viable

         10  financing opportunities.

         11                 To date we've helped small businesses

         12  secure over $12 million in new financing from

         13  non-profits and commercial lenders. And in Fiscal

         14  Year '07, our goal is to increase that number to $15

         15  million annually.

         16                 Remember, many of these small

         17  businesses are people who have been turned down by

         18  some of the traditional sources of funding, and that

         19  has made a big difference.

         20                 Another new initiative that we're

         21  going to be taking as we go forward with Business

         22  Solutions, and this is something that the Mayor has

         23  announced, and that is the launching of something

         24  called business express.

         25                 The Mayor announced this last month
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          2  and it's going to be on line one stop permit wizard

          3  that allows businesses to identify all the licensing

          4  and permit needs at the local state and federal

          5  level. This means that business owners will no

          6  longer have to visit a dozen or more government

          7  agencies before they can even open up their doors

          8  for business.

          9                 Take, for example, a restaurant

         10  industry. If someone wants to open up a restaurant

         11  in New York City, you have to deal with at least 15

         12  City, State and federal agencies. Business express

         13  will make all of these forms and applications

         14  available in one place. Quite frankly, I'd like to

         15  see if we could reduce that number, where it wasn't

         16  15, and what we're going to be doing next week is

         17  we're going to bring many of these City agencies in

         18  and ask questions, when a restaurant owner fills

         19  this format, where does this form go? How is it

         20  used? What can we do to consolidate a number of

         21  these different forms in one place? It saves the

         22  business time, it saves them money, a lot of

         23  aggravation and frustration, and I'm confident that

         24  we're going to be able to make some headway. You

         25  give credit where credit is due on this. We have
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          2  Assistant Commissioner Michael Hecht, no pressure on

          3  him, to lead this effort and make the City a more

          4  business-friendly place.

          5                 So, Michael, who is in the audience,

          6  no pressure as we go forward.

          7                 The other thing that we're going to

          8  do, and this is something I need your help, is we're

          9  improving our on-line presence of something called

         10  New York City Site Solutions.

         11                 Councilwoman Reyna was talking before

         12  about a large site in her district, the Madamosielle

         13  site, which I have seen, and we can go through each

         14  and every district here, particularly in some of the

         15  manufacturing and industrial areas where there

         16  particularly isn't as much of a market, perhaps that

         17  market is growing. If we could get the information

         18  in a place, and we could tell people that there's

         19  50,000 square feet that are available in Red Hook or

         20  Williamsburg or Greenpoint or the South Bronx, and

         21  this is the parameters, and this is the zoning and

         22  this is the information and this is the incentives,

         23  what a difference that would make. What a difference

         24  it would be making in some of those areas where

         25  we're seeing growth, and you could throw in East New
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          2  York and you can throw in Bed Stuy, and some of

          3  those areas and getting all that information in one

          4  place.

          5                 We're not going to be able to do it

          6  alone. I realize we're not going to be able to do it

          7  alone, and we need to be leaning on those

          8  organizations, those community-based organizations,

          9  those local development corporations, the heads of

         10  the Empire Zones, you know, to begin putting a base

         11  together. But my feeling is if we could get this

         12  thing up and running, and it is credible, this thing

         13  will take off like wildfire, and we're going to be

         14  obviously working with Carl Hum and his staff at the

         15  Mayor's Office of Manufacturing and Industrial to

         16  make that happen, and tap into the 17 designated

         17  industrial zones. But it's not just about industrial

         18  manufacturing areas. This is a real estate database

         19  that could work.

         20                 Speaking of manufacturing and

         21  industrial areas, the next couple of months are

         22  going to be very key for us as we get the network of

         23  the 17 designated industrial zones up and running.

         24                 We will have administrators in the 17

         25  zones, that means they will be able to help tackling
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          2  some of the most pressing issues. We heard it when

          3  we went out there, when we talked to small business

          4  owners, they were most concerned about some of those

          5  quality of life issues, whether it was graffiti or

          6  lighting or parking and doing business in New York,

          7  and the manufacturing and industrial firms will now

          8  have greater access to more of our services, more of

          9  our incentives, more of the issues around obtaining

         10  financing and incentives.

         11                 I want to shift focus to workforce

         12  development, and I know that was a topic of great

         13  concern when Andy Alper was here. And one of the

         14  ways we have focused our efforts is to better

         15  service businesses that have been dealing with the

         16  City on Workforce Development, and I have to say, we

         17  have done a complete overhaul of our workforce

         18  development programs, and, again, this is another

         19  area that we're quite proud of. We also realize that

         20  there is so much more that has to be done in the

         21  areas of job placement, customized training and

         22  partnering with organizations who are doing this

         23  well.

         24                 To illustrate how far we've come, let

         25  me give you a few more numbers that will give you a
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          2  perspective.

          3                 The biggest gains in job placement

          4  have been in our Workforce One Career Centers. In

          5  2003, the Mayor merged Department of Employment with

          6  SBS. We had three centers, three centers and just

          7  one contractor.

          8                 Today we have seven centers and we

          9  have seven contractors, including two new

         10  facilities, opened in partnership with the City

         11  University of New York, and that has been at

         12  LaGuardia Community College, and one at CUNY on the

         13  Concourse in the Bronx with Lehman College and 1199.

         14                 Previously we had no relationship

         15  whatsoever with the City University in New York, and

         16  it's hard to believe we had a workforce development

         17  program in the City without any relationship with

         18  our local community colleges or universities.

         19                 In 2003, the career centers were at

         20  best, at best placing 100 or maybe 200 people in

         21  jobs each month. Today we're averaging over 1,000

         22  placements each month.

         23                 By bringing additional contractors,

         24  by having competitive bids, we have brought a

         25  healthy level of competition in the centers. This
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          2  competition has resulted in tremendous growth. And I

          3  have to tell you, the spirit has been terrific. When

          4  you bring organizations together like Goodwill and

          5  Wildcat and SeedCo, and when you bring them in a

          6  room and where they're sharing information and

          7  they're talking about some of the best practices, it

          8  makes all the difference.

          9                 And, yes, we have been out in Bed

         10  Stuy. In fact, the opening. Chairman, recently at

         11  Applebees, you and I were both out there, we placed

         12  39 people at that opening. Thirty-nine, you know,

         13  new jobs. I wish the Councilman for the District was

         14  here to hear that, because I think it's important.

         15                 Councilwoman Brewer will tell you

         16  that when we opened up the Mandarin Hotel, we were

         17  there to place people. We're doing it in Fairway and

         18  Red Hook.

         19                 In Red Hook, I'll give you an

         20  example. Twelve of the managers. We're not talking

         21  about people stocking the shelves, and it hasn't

         22  even opened up and they have hired 12 people. How

         23  many of those have come from the neighborhood, or

         24  from the Red Hook houses? Four from Red Hook houses,

         25  an incredible story, something that we would not
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          2  have been able to do, quite frankly, a number of

          3  years ago. And that list goes on and on, we could

          4  talk about Hunts Point with the move of the fish

          5  terminal. The key thing is we have shifted the

          6  focus, and Andy Alper has been a large part of that.

          7  You know, what Andy has done, and his people have

          8  done is when they have announced or when they're

          9  familiar with a new development taking place, they

         10  have given us the heads up and we've been able to

         11  reach out to the private companies and say what will

         12  you need? How can we help you place people? And I

         13  think that's an important piece and something to

         14  emphasize.

         15                 Our numbers at the Center have

         16  consistently gone up each quarter. We're working

         17  with the vendors to be more effective as we go

         18  forward.

         19                 Since the spring of 2004, we've

         20  connected more than 13,000 New Yorkers to employment

         21  in over 3,000 businesses. In 2006, our goal is to

         22  place an additional, an additional 15,000 New

         23  Yorkers in jobs.

         24                 Beyond placement, and I think it's

         25  important to talk about beyond placement. We're

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  placing a greater emphasis on the area of training,

          3  and training with some of the existing businesses in

          4  the area.

          5                 This, again, was not part of our

          6  portfolio, and I want to speak to that a little bit

          7  more in terms of what the training part was of our

          8  portfolio.

          9                 This past year, for the first time,

         10  for the first time we started a customized training

         11  program for businesses, which allows businesses to

         12  apply for grants to train their employees to

         13  increase productivity, wages and create new entry

         14  level jobs.

         15                 If you're taking someone from the

         16  lowest wrungs, you're training them for higher level

         17  that's opening up other positions and we're ready to

         18  work with small businesses along that way. And,

         19  again, I have some numbers.

         20                 Since October 2005, we have awarded

         21  ten grants totaling over 1.5 million dollars to

         22  train 739 employees. We also take advantage of state

         23  funds to help the City's businesses, something we

         24  didn't do in the past. Last year we helped 31

         25  businesses in all five boroughs secure more than
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          2  $1.2 million in State grants to train 1,600 workers.

          3                 I've mentioned some of the places,

          4  I'm not going to go into the details of places which

          5  help, but this has been particularly helpful when

          6  businesses have opened up a new place, whether it's

          7  the Fairway in Red Hook, or the move of the fish

          8  market up in the South Bronx where we see a large

          9  cluster of jobs.

         10                 Another ongoing focus of our training

         11  efforts has been to make our individual training

         12  account voucher program a more integral part of our

         13  strategy to link jobs to growth industries.

         14                 These training vouchers currently

         15  provide up to $2,500 to pay for classes at

         16  third-party providers.

         17                 We have taken many steps to improve

         18  accountability among these providers, mandating a 50

         19  percent placement rate, and 75 percent completion in

         20  order to be eligible for vouchers.

         21                 This year we'll launch a new website.

         22  It will essentially work like Zagots Guide for

         23  training providers, where if you come into one of

         24  our career centers, you could find out about one of

         25  these vocational schools and what their history has
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          2  been in placing people in jobs.

          3                 We see the ads in the subways, we see

          4  the ads in the newspapers. In many cases, quite

          5  frankly, it's sad to say it's not true what they've

          6  been able to do in placement. Who is that cheating?

          7  It's cheating the poorest people in the City. And

          8  David Margolit and his team deserves a lot of credit

          9  on this. It has forced many of these vocational

         10  schools to come clean, frankly, and to have programs

         11  and training that works.

         12                 We've made a great deal of gain in

         13  our workforce programs, but here is the bad news.

         14  The bad news is that we face a major hurdle in the

         15  year ahead, in the form of a drastic, and I mean

         16  drastic budget cut. Because of reductions in federal

         17  workforce investment act dollars on a national

         18  level, we will receive $10.5 million less in funds

         19  in Fiscal Year '07.

         20                 What it forces us to do is look

         21  closely at all our options across the board to

         22  determine how we best could sustain a setback while

         23  improving our services.

         24                 This is not going to be an easy time.

         25  It's not going to be an easy time because there are
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          2  so many organizations and so many groups out

          3  throughout the five boroughs who are doing good

          4  work, or just beginning to do some good work on

          5  workforce development, and one way or another we're

          6  going to have to figure out how to deal with this.

          7                 Let me shift focus to the fourth

          8  area, and then certainly to the questions, and that

          9  is promoting opportunities for minority and

         10  woman-owned businesses.

         11                 One of the areas in business

         12  assistance where we've worked closely, and that's

         13  probably an understatement, with the City Council,

         14  and I see Councilman Jackson has joined us, has been

         15  the Minority and Woman-Owned Business Enterprise

         16  Program, the MWBE program, and I want to thank you,

         17  Councilman Jackson for your help in working with us

         18  as we've gone forward on that.

         19                 I know we have a lot more work to do

         20  and it was just over two months ago when the Mayor

         21  signed Local Law 129 calling for the creation of

         22  MWBE purchasing targets at each of the City

         23  agencies. On top of the foundation that we've

         24  already built since the signing of Executive Order

         25  36 by the Mayor in 2003, this new law provides

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  accountability to ensure that minority and

          3  woman-owned businesses throughout the five boroughs

          4  get access to opportunities they need to grow.

          5                 Assistant Commissioner Kerri Jew,

          6  First Deputy Commissioner Andy Schwartz has been the

          7  stallworks of this in our agency, have worked so

          8  hard in getting it up and running. They have been

          9  out in the agencies. They've already met with 11

         10  agencies one-on-one in long meetings. I've poked my

         11  head in a number of meetings. In fact, the Mayor was

         12  in our offices not too long ago, Kerri and her team

         13  were in meeting with the Department of Sanitation

         14  asking about details and specifics about their

         15  procurement, how many people do they have on it, you

         16  know, where is the focus, what are the bundle

         17  contracts, where are there opportunities? You know,

         18  what do you plan on purchasing in this six months

         19  ahead? These are the types of questions that Kerri

         20  Jew has been asking. We're lucky to have her from

         21  Corp Counsel. She has put together a phenomenal

         22  team. Some of them are with us today, Walter

         23  Maxwell, Phyllis Atwater. And I think we have an

         24  opportunity to develop one of the best, if not the

         25  strongest, MWBE program in the country.
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          2                 Over the past years, and I've

          3  testified to this in previous hearings, we've

          4  enhanced our certification process by eliminating a

          5  backlog that once existed, there is no backlog. You

          6  could certify with us in less than two weeks if you

          7  have all your paperwork together, and if you don't

          8  have it together, we're going to urge you to do it.

          9                 We've streamlined the application

         10  process. We've put application materials on line in

         11  Spanish, we have training programs at the agency,

         12  and now, as a result, more firms are certifying than

         13  ever before.

         14                 We expect to reach a goal of 400 new

         15  certifications for this fiscal year, last year it

         16  was 300, this year it's 400. Still not enough. We've

         17  still got to do much, much more than 400 a year. And

         18  I think it will happen, quite frankly, when people

         19  see more and more results.

         20                 We have some of the results that I'd

         21  like to share with you. But I think if we're going

         22  to get the MWBE program up and running, one of the

         23  focuses that we need to have and put on is on

         24  capacity building, and focusing on technical

         25  assistance and capacity building of some of those
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          2  certified firms, getting some of those smaller firms

          3  in a position to take on some of the larger

          4  contracts. And I'd be happy to talk more about that

          5  during the question and answer session, in terms of

          6  how we're going to do that.

          7                 But I do want to share some of the

          8  numbers that we had to date when we have focused and

          9  concentrated on some of the certified MWBEs.

         10                 The first six months of Fiscal Year

         11  '06 have brought some encouraging results. Since

         12  July 1st, we've helped certified MWBEs secure more

         13  than $37 million in the City contracts. This is not

         14  a complete number. It reflects only those certified

         15  MWBEs who have come into us for procurement

         16  assistance, they've either taken a class with us or

         17  they've gone through one-on-one counseling, but we

         18  know who they are and we're working with them as

         19  they continue to build.

         20                 And this is one of the things that we

         21  need to do, and we know we need to do, is improve

         22  our data tracking. It's probably one of the most

         23  important parts of Local Law 129, is us working with

         24  the Mayor's Office of Contracts. So, with the

         25  ability of tracking and identifying minority and
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          2  woman-owned businesses that are doing business with

          3  the City. And I think we're going to see these

          4  numbers, again, increase.

          5                 I've shared a lot of different

          6  initiatives from us being out on the street working

          7  door-to-door. I didn't talk about one of our secret

          8  weapons and that's Bernadette Nation and her

          9  assistance that she goes out door-to-door, working

         10  with different groups. I have joined her on a number

         11  of occasions to our Business Improvement Districts,

         12  to our help and streetscape improvements, to our

         13  workforce development, looking at it from the gross

         14  sectors, and then finally our MWBE programs, but

         15  this agency has come a long way in the last four

         16  years certainly, and what I do know is we certainly

         17  have much more work to do, but the fact is we could

         18  truly now live up to our name of an agency that is

         19  now providing business services primarily to small

         20  businesses.

         21                 Again, I want to thank each and every

         22  one of you for your help, for your encouragement and

         23  your support over the last year.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Well, thank you.
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          2  It really is not just boilerplate. It really is a

          3  privilege to have you here discussing the agency. I

          4  just, I have to start by saying that I think you've

          5  brought just tremendous vision and leadership to

          6  this task, and the range of initiatives that you've

          7  outlined over the last four years is something

          8  that's very impressive, and I'm sure we'll be

          9  exceeded only by the range of initiatives to come

         10  over the next four years, so I look forward to

         11  working together with you on those.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I want to

         14  also thank you, I see you're playing while hurt, and

         15  that reflects a real dedication.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Right. I had to

         17  put Schwartz in his place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: There are many

         19  topics that you covered that I would like to go a

         20  little bit more in depth on, but I'm going to defer

         21  so that other Committee members can ask and then

         22  I'll go into what's left over.

         23                 Chairman White, you have questions?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         25  much, Chairman Yassky.
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          2                 Firstoff, on that MTA joint effort

          3  that you're having?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I notice that, I

          6  could not help but notice --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You noticed the F

          8  Line does not go through your district you were

          9  probably going to say, right?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You can find the

         11  line that does.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: What's that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You can find the

         14  line that does go through my district.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Doesn't the F

         16  Line go through your district?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes, it goes on

         18  Hillside Avenue and I believe the last stop is 179th

         19  Street. And if you could not be successful there,

         20  then you could take the E Train, which stops at

         21  Jamaica Station, Arch Avenue, where the Air Train is

         22  and it's right down there by the local development.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Well, I hope the

         24  Neighborhood Development staff behind me is

         25  listening to that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I'm sure they are.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Good.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay?

          5                 So, I would like that to be included.

          6  The other area that I would like to ask is, you had

          7  mentioned in your presentation a lot of wonderful

          8  things in terms of the BIDs or how they will help

          9  the communities and one particular company in

         10  Queens.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Ridgewood Queens.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: The Garment

         13  Industry.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's Ted

         15  Renses's group, who has been going through, you

         16  know, storefront, block by block, storefront by

         17  storefront. We've been working with him in providing

         18  designs and guidelines, and sometimes it just means

         19  cleaning it up, and other times it means, you know

         20  more structural improvements made to some of the

         21  storefronts. And we'd be happy to do the same thing

         22  in your district.

         23                 I will come out. You know, I'll walk

         24  it with you. I have a little bit of experience in

         25  this area. You know, I ran a local development
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          2  corporation at one point and, you know, we have a

          3  person that we hired on our staff, a woman by the

          4  name if Michelle Rooney, who is doing a terrific job

          5  in bringing local development corporations in.

          6                 You know, a lot of the small

          7  businesses I have know, I've noticed on many of the

          8  entrepreneurs they believe if they put 15,000 signs

          9  out on their storefront, it's going to make their

         10  appearance more attractive, and we've been a bit of

         11  minimalist in terms of attempting to get many of the

         12  storefronts to clean it up to make it more

         13  attractive, and I'll be happy to talk more about it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So you'll make

         15  that commitment?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Consider it done.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you.

         18                 Now, everything --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: What retail

         20  corridors are you specifically interested?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, I'm

         22  specifically interested in the Sutphin Boulevard.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: As well as the

         25  Rockaway Boulevard area.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And Sutphin has a

          3  new Business Improvement District down near the

          4  Court House. But that's a little further up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. But I wanted

          6  to keep coming.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Keep going.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay? Extend it.

          9                 Now, everything was fine, but I need

         10  a definition, I really do on this one. Because

         11  sometimes it's misleading on this. I don't think you

         12  mean to mislead us, but I need to be clear; and that

         13  is, minority and woman-owned business.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Now, when you say

         16  minority and woman-owned business, okay, are we

         17  talking about minority women only? Or are we talking

         18  about all women, plus the minority?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The program is

         20  open for minorities and women to certify.

         21                 Andy is the lawyer, and it's always

         22  good to have a lawyer up here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Where is the

         24  lawyer?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I am not.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Andy?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Because the last

          6  time I worked on the City Council --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: They're going to

          8  ask you to identify yourself.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes, could you

         10  identify yourself?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         12  Andrew Schwartz, First Deputy Commissioner,

         13  Department of Small Business Services.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. The last

         15  time that I was in the City Council, I was on the

         16  Contracts Committee and we were dealing with the

         17  issue of women and minority-owned business, and

         18  there was that question that I feel compelled to

         19  ask, that question was that there were many

         20  contractors and developers who had businesses, who

         21  had turned some of their business over into their

         22  spouse's names, therefore that put them into the

         23  category of being classified as minorities. Is that

         24  true?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  If they turned it over?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: That can be done?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          5  Well, the program is for bonafide minority or

          6  woman-owned businesses. So, if there's a change in

          7  ownership, then that's a question as to whether the

          8  company can continue to be certified in that

          9  program.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: No, I mean my

         11  wife.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You're worried

         13  about the whole issue of the straw man, if you will,

         14  of it not actually being a minority or woman-owned

         15  business?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I'm saying, I'm

         17  interested in a wrong perception here.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And we have some

         19  measures that we do take through our certification.

         20  This has been one of the tough parts in this. It's

         21  been a difficult part on certification.  It is a

         22  lengthy process. We trimmed it, we streamlined it,

         23  but companies that certify with the City have to go

         24  through due process. We have a number of checks.

         25  Kerri Jew, our Assistant Commissioner, probably
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          2  could talk more about those steps. Her and her

          3  staff, Phyllis Atwater, is she still with us?

          4  Phyllis, please stand up for us just a second.

          5  Phyllis heads up our certification unit.

          6                 Phyllis goes through and checks each

          7  and every one of the businesses that do certify with

          8  us to ensure that there are no fronts.

          9                 Does it happen? It probably happens

         10  every once in awhile. What specific measures do we

         11  take? Do you want to talk about that a little bit?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: Sure.

         13                 We ask companies for their tax

         14  information, for corporate records, for resumes of

         15  the people of who they claim own and control the

         16  operations of the business, to ensure that the woman

         17  or minority owner is the person who actually has the

         18  knowledge and expertise. When necessary, we call the

         19  companies in and have the person who is claiming to

         20  be the woman or minority owner come in to speak with

         21  our certification analyst and be interviewed so that

         22  we can be satisfied that they actually do understand

         23  the operations of the business and they actually do

         24  own and operate the every day workings of the

         25  business.
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          2                 In addition, there are times that we

          3  do site visits and we go to the actual place of

          4  business.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. So, that

          6  clears it up for me.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: I'm

          8  sorry. They wanted me to state my name for the

          9  record. Kerri Jew, Assistant Commissioner of the

         10  Division of Economic and Financial Opportunity.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. So, that's

         12  the monitor, that there are no fronts put in and to

         13  take advantage of whether they're minority-owned

         14  businesses.

         15                 Okay, now, I really enjoyed your

         16  presentation, but I'm a little nervous about one

         17  statement.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Go ahead.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And that is, as we

         20  get down to all of those nice things that we're

         21  doing, that you're doing, we then hit the fact that,

         22  you know, you have a concern that with all the

         23  progress made that you're going to be hit with a

         24  $10.5 million less in funding.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes. Awful.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Now, that

          3  tells me, or leads me to ask you, that $10.5

          4  million, does that impact on everything that you

          5  said previously, in one way or another?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I'll tell you

          7  what we're going to be able to do. We're going to be

          8  able to keep our career centers -- and you have to

          9  come and see them, they are working and they're

         10  working well. We're going to be able to keep our

         11  relationship with the City University of New York.

         12  We're going to be able to do some of the

         13  partnerships that we've been able to develop, you

         14  know, on some of those bigger ticket projects. What

         15  we're not going to be able to do, is to fund some of

         16  the groups that we've been funding, you know,

         17  throughout the five boroughs, and that's where, you

         18  know, some of them are going to face some draconian

         19  cuts.

         20                 If the Workforce Investment money is

         21  not received from the federal government, it's $10

         22  million, it will have a dramatic impact on some of

         23  these organizations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I only have one

         25  follow-up question with that, is in terms of that
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          2  $10.5 million, and with the previous testimony of

          3  the Commissioner of EDC or the President of EDC, and

          4  the tax incentives that people are getting, that

          5  from big business, and we're talking about job

          6  creation, do you have a mechanism where big business

          7  can contribute towards assisting to whatever degree

          8  they can because they're getting tax breaks and

          9  they're hiring people from the various communities

         10  to absorb that $1.5 million that the feds may not

         11  give us?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We're not going

         13  to be able to absorb the $10.5 million through some

         14  of the businesses. What we can do, as we work, and I

         15  was listening as president of EDC was speaking, Andy

         16  Alper, is to continue working with him and his staff

         17  on any of the IDA deals now.

         18                 I'll give an example. We have staff

         19  that are in the meetings working with his staff on

         20  some of these larger, you know, projects, and if

         21  someone is given an IDA, or they're given an

         22  incentive, our workforce people are there to talk

         23  about customized training, to talk about development

         24  of outreach and workforce outreach into the various

         25  communities.
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          2                 That's leveraging.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You know, in some

          5  cases we've had some success, I mentioned a couple

          6  of them in my testimony. But this is an area where,

          7  quite frankly, we have a lot more to do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: All right, thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Palma for questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 Commissioner, with the Workforce

         15  Investment, and the point that Council Member White

         16  brought up, do you know the groups that have been

         17  identified --

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We have not

         19  identified the groups.

         20                 You know, I've been in denial on

         21  this. You know, on the, you know, in terms of where

         22  to take the cuts. It is a very, very difficult

         23  process, and we have not identified the groups.

         24                 My hope is that with stronger career

         25  centers in the Bronx, we work with the Bronx
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          2  overall, and we have the Wildcat Services

          3  Corporation, is that we're going to be able, you

          4  know, because they're a bit stronger, that we're

          5  going to be able to pick up some of the slack, but

          6  we're not going to be able to pick up all of it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay. And you

          8  had mentioned that you're happy with the partnering

          9  of universities and you also mentioned -- I mean, in

         10  your testimony that you don't know why you hadn't --

         11  they hadn't done it before, but that it works?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We weren't

         13  certified as a Workforce Investment Board.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Go figure.

         16                 But we weren't certified, and because

         17  we weren't certified, we lost out on some funds.

         18                 I reached out to the City University

         19  of New York as a partner, and it has been one of the

         20  best relationships that you could have. We continue

         21  to work, and work very hard with them on all fronts.

         22                 I was just with a number of the --

         23  I'll give you an example, in Brooklyn, in Council

         24  Member James's borough, the borough I live in, is we

         25  put together, we put together 14 of the presidents
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          2  or their representatives, seven of the presidents

          3  were there to start talking it's graduation time in

          4  May and for Medgar Evers and for St. Joseph's and,

          5  you know, for St. Francis College and New York Tech

          6  and Kings Borough Community College and many of the

          7  others, what could we be doing to help through our

          8  career centers to place students. And my hope is if

          9  that, again, is successful, we could replicate that

         10  throughout the five boroughs.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And you also

         12  said that you work with 1199.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: CUNY on the

         14  Concourse.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Right.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Concourse and

         17  Fordham Road. Is that your district?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: That's not my

         19  district, no. But I worked for 1199 when that whole

         20  project came to fruition and --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's a great

         22  program.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: It is a great

         24  program. And I send a lot of people from my district

         25  to take advantage of it.
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          2                 What other union is the SBS

          3  partnering up with or working with or have a

          4  relationship with, in terms of making sure that (1)

          5  people leave the career centers and are ready to

          6  enter the workforce, that these unions are actually

          7  opening the doors and hiring these folks that are

          8  now trained and are able to do these jobs?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We have a number

         10  of programs with 1199. In fact, we just added

         11  someone from 1199 from the Workforce Investment

         12  Board, I bet I could take credit for, but the real

         13  champion on that is the woman sitting in the front

         14  row, and that's Marilyn Shay, who is the regional

         15  administrator for the Feds. Don't blame her for the

         16  cuts. But she now heads up our Workforce Investment

         17  Board and she has put the unions together in the

         18  room with the non-profits and other groups, and

         19  particularly in the area of health services where

         20  there is, we're seeing growth, there's been a focus.

         21                 Marilyn, would you want to talk about

         22  some of the specific training programs that we have?

         23  Or would you like us to get back to you on that?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: You can get

         25  back to me.

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 I think my question is, I want to

          3  know, is the SBS now under, or working with Marilyn,

          4  going to have some sort of oversight with, like the

          5  Buildings Trades and Constructions, which are kind

          6  of harder to get --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes. The Building

          8  Trades and Construction is a separate initiative,

          9  you know, from the Workforce Investment Board.

         10                 Andy Schwartz probably could speak

         11  much more, you know, to that. It's been Andy and

         12  Andy heading up the efforts in terms of, you know,

         13  now that the Commission's work is over, there's been

         14  a lot of promises and initiatives, you know, let's

         15  get going.

         16                 So, do you want to hear about some of

         17  those initiatives?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I would like

         19  to, because I think our biggest concern, especially

         20  in the borough where I come from, is that we send

         21  people to these programs and then they can get their

         22  foot in the door.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And Council

         24  Member James had mentioned that in the previous

         25  discussions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Right.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  Yes. I think as far as the Mayor's Construction

          5  Commission there were commitments made with the

          6  apprenticeship programs to bring in certain

          7  percentages of women, minority, I think veteran

          8  candidates each year, and the Mayor has asked our

          9  agency to monitor their compliance with those goals.

         10  And that's done through our Division of Labor

         11  Services.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay, thank

         13  you. Thank you, Commissioner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Council Member

         15  Brewer and then Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         17  much. And I want to thank you, Rob Walsh, and your

         18  staff. Marilyn Shay is okay, David Margolit, they're

         19  both quite amazing, so I appreciate all of their

         20  input.

         21                 I've got about six, seven questions.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: First of all,

         24  as the vouchers, this is a small question, the

         25  vouchers are now $2,500, I guess?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Couldn't it be

          4  possible? Sometimes you have to pay more for the

          5  training?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Could we make

          8  that flexible?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, how do we

         11  do that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: One is we get the

         13  program under control which I think we have.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We have.

         15  That's under control.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's under

         17  control. We feel good. People are no longer coming

         18  up to the -- and I think these are discussions sort

         19  of you had I have had off line at different events.

         20  People were coming to our career centers, not for

         21  job placement or training, they were coming to get a

         22  voucher, so vocational schools told them that's

         23  where you could get, and come on back with the

         24  voucher, okay?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That has changed

          3  pretty dramatically.

          4                 We are now, we have a  bit of a

          5  discipline, a lot of a discipline in each of the

          6  centers where we know about placement, where we know

          7  about the growth sectors. What I'd like to do, quite

          8  frankly, is where there is a growth sector, say home

          9  health care is a growth sector, and you have a good

         10  training program and you have a good track record

         11  with a school, you end up providing more funds. And

         12  Marilyn could tell us a little bit in terms of how

         13  close we are to that.

         14                 I know this has been a discussion

         15  among the Workforce Investment Board, whether we

         16  have different levels based on the growth sector in

         17  the area.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You need

         19  different levels.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm just

         22  saying.

         23                 And the person at the centers need

         24  power to do that.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Or have some

          3  flexibility.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We are going to

          5  pursue that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Okay?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm just

          9  saying, I don't want to have this conversation next

         10  year.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You won't have it

         12  next year, because we're going to pursue this.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         14                 The other question is, there is the

         15  notion of barriers to employment, which I think

         16  you're trying to address. In other words, if I leave

         17  Rikers Island and I come directly to your center, I

         18  cannot really be helped because I really do need

         19  something else.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I might need

         22  Osbourne. I might need Fortune, et cetera.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: A CBO, a Wildcat,

         24  there's been a number. We have funded a number of

         25  specific non-profit organizations that have dealt
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          2  with -- you mentioned the ex-offender population.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We have a number

          5  of specialized contracts with other groups.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, but I'm

          7  just saying this is a problem. The folks are coming

          8  from the different places to the centers, and it

          9  just needs to be addressed. It's not easy, but it

         10  needs to be addressed.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And we also have

         12  given contracts in those areas to groups and, quite

         13  frankly, I'd like to see those numbers, the

         14  placement numbers be a lot better.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's hard, it

         16  just needs a lot more attention.

         17                 The other question I have is your job

         18  developers are wonderful, but it's a hard job, being

         19  a job developer, it's a very difficult job.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They need more

         22  money to either hire, they're terrific but you need

         23  a really tough person to go and get these jobs, and

         24  it comes up. These are conversations, I've been

         25  talking to the world about this topic.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, the issue

          4  of job developer is very difficult. It's almost

          5  24/7. It's your home e-mail, it's your cell phone,

          6  it's not nine to five.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes, I turned

          8  around and looked at Bonnie Potter and she was

          9  shaking her head. This is a problem across the

         10  board.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I've talked to

         12  Bonnie, too.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's like having

         14  a good shortstop on a team. It's a difficult,

         15  difficult --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's 24/7.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And when I walk

         18  into the center, one of the first places I do, is I

         19  go over to job development. If we went over to 9

         20  Bond, which is the closest center in Downtown

         21  Brooklyn, go to the job developers, what are you

         22  working on today?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You know, what do

         25  you have? What's in the hopper.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, I'm just

          3  saying is you have to think about that. I understand

          4  the cut in WIA, but you need to think about them

          5  getting more money so it's like over there the Board

          6  of Elections doesn't get enough, this category

          7  doesn't either.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Council member,

          9  it's interesting what's happened, because what I'm

         10  seeing, and I'll use the Brooklyn example, because I

         11  mentioned it, is that the emphasis and greater

         12  emphasis has been on the job development, and

         13  Goodwill Industries, in fact they've been leading

         14  the pack on placement, and I believe they have

         15  shifted, they have added more people in job

         16  development, and my hope is that they're paying them

         17  more.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I'm just

         19  saying it's something to look at.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Career ladder.

         22  I know that it's terrific, we get people jobs, but

         23  then they move up, hopefully.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And the
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          2  question is, how do we help them do that? And do we

          3  have the ability, once they do move up at Ikea,

          4  Fairway or whatever, you know, sometimes it's my

          5  cousin who gets the job when I move up, that's fine,

          6  but do we want to make sure that there is a

          7  follow-up?

          8                 The reason I ask this, obviously you

          9  were terrific together on the Mandarin, the only

         10  time I go back there is when I go there for a

         11  million dinners, or I go to housekeeping and say hi

         12  to everybody, but I don't have a clue about the

         13  follow-up. It's my fault, I'm not going to say it's

         14  anybody else's, but in general on these projects, if

         15  I didn't pay attention at the Mandarin, with all due

         16  respect, they will put an ad in the Times in

         17  Connecticut and New Jersey, Long Island, they would

         18  all get a job. They don't dare do that at the

         19  Mandarin. But in general --

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Or your district.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Oh, no, not in

         22  my district. They're not allowed, those people. But

         23  in general, I'm just wondering, how do we deal with

         24  this follow-up? Funding is an issue, but the career

         25  ladder is something that people can come back for
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          2  skills, how we do partnerships for that? I don't

          3  know, is that something that you're thinking about?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Well, it's an

          5  area that we have just entered, and that's been the

          6  training aspect and putting funds aside for

          7  customized training. You know, I have numbers since

          8  October 2005, ten grants, 1.5 million, 639

          9  employees, 579 of the 739 were existing employees,

         10  meaning they were being trained for a higher level

         11  job. And we have to do that. We have to be

         12  persistent about that through audits, on

         13  follow-through, and, you know, quite frankly it was

         14  579 existing, then 160 new hires.

         15                 If we established a relationship with

         16  that company, we're going to now go back to that

         17  company when they do have a new hire, and my hope is

         18  that they want to stay on track with these types of

         19  customized training programs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know it's a

         21  lot of work, but it's worth it, I think.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's an amazing

         23  amount of work. We have a staff now of, I want to

         24  say about a dozen people or so in this area. I'm

         25  thinking of Ladico's unit (phonetic.) How many
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          2  people do you have in there?

          3                 MR. LADICO: About a dozen.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: About a dozen who

          5  are working on this and looking for those types of

          6  relationships.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          8                 That also begs the question of, you

          9  know, your wonderful relationship with many

         10  community-based organizations, and I know it's being

         11  worked on. The WIA cut will have an impact.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's going to

         13  have a huge impact and this body is going to hear

         14  it. They're going to hear it. It's something that's

         15  frightening.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right. I'm

         17  just saying maybe for another hearing, another

         18  discussion, as to how to either deal with it?

         19  Because I don't know that your centers open nine to

         20  five can absorb that.

         21                 The issue of the centers, also

         22  funding is an issue.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But I know

         25  they're just open nine to five.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Monday through

          3  Friday.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Exactly. And

          5  they need to be open more.

          6                 I know in some cases you can go in

          7  the back door, because I've been in the back door,

          8  and you can go for training in the evening. I know

          9  how to get in the back door.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Shhh, don't tell

         11  anybody.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But the fact

         13  of the matter is, we need to think about training,

         14  upgrade, job skills, all 24/7, or at least more

         15  hours than nine to five Monday to Friday.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And we realize

         17  that a lot of the training is taking place in halls

         18  and basements and union -- and that's the importance

         19  of groups like Bonnie Potter and her coalition of

         20  people.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. Because

         22  that will be an increased barrier to employment if

         23  we can't open them more often and if some of these

         24  non-profits aren't able to do it. These are things

         25  to think about.
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          2                 I just want to mention what I call

          3  low hanging fruit, I guess that's more of a tech

          4  term. But for those projects where you don't have

          5  IDA, EDC or some other component, like the

          6  Zeckendoffs (phonetic) are building in my area,

          7  they'll be hiring hundreds and hundreds of people.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's just a

         10  big development. No project. Now, it will just be

         11  Gale Brewer going in there and saying to the

         12  Zeckendoffs you have to hire locally, and then I'll

         13  work with your staff to do that.

         14                 But how do we handle these projects

         15  that may not have federal, state or city money, that

         16  are going to be employing, and with all due respect,

         17  I want people to come from the neighborhood or from

         18  the City of New York. There is no discussion of

         19  that.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We try, Council

         21  member. We go through on announcements that we see

         22  in the paper, on the Crains, on the Crains Insider,

         23  through IDA, through Local Development Corporations.

         24  I now get monthly reports from the Business

         25  Improvement Districts and they often like to do what
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          2  I used to do, is take credit for a development when

          3  it comes to an area and we tip off our group that is

          4  headed by David Margolit, and we put account

          5  managers on some of these larger ones.

          6                 That is the reason why we were able

          7  to get those 12 managers, you know, at the Fairway.

          8  You know, obviously we work with a number of

          9  non-profits. In that case I believe it was the Fifth

         10  Avenue Committee.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It was.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: So we all could

         13  take credit for that. But we need to see more cases

         14  like that, and for us it's meant to have a track

         15  record, because the reality is when I get on the

         16  phone or I see someone at an event, and I tell them

         17  that I'm Rob Walsh and I'm with the government, they

         18  often perceive it as a broken product. And that's

         19  unfortunate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That is really

         22  unfortunate. I think we've proved them wrong in

         23  Atlantic Terminal. I think we proved them wrong in

         24  Mandarin Hotel. We're going to prove them wrong in

         25  many other places.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          3                 And then just finally, unemployment.

          4  We've talked about this, but the issue is there are

          5  many people on unemployment in the City of New York.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And they're

          8  not able to coordinate for a whole series of state

          9  reasons with your centers. And they, right now if

         10  you're on unemployment, I have friends on

         11  unemployment, you know, you can do it all from your

         12  home computer, you can call in, you push buttons,

         13  it's very technology-savvy. There is no job. They

         14  never even ask you if you're looking.

         15                 So, my question is, as time goes on,

         16  to make it a focus, because those are folks who

         17  would be ready to work, would love to know about

         18  your centers, your centers are terrific, they're not

         19  well advertised. They find them, but they're not the

         20  best advertised thing in New York City.

         21                 So, that coordination needs to

         22  happen. Those are people who are ready to work.

         23  They've worked before, otherwise they wouldn't be

         24  getting unemployment, but this is another area where

         25  if we're going to have, you know, a full scale sort
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          2  of worker education from A to Z, we need to think

          3  about. And I think it would make a lot of sense

          4  because some of these projects, IDA, et cetera,

          5  would love to have some of these workers.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They don't

          8  have that connection. Unemployed. Who are officially

          9  on unemployment. Okay, thank you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I could ask

         12  another 100 questions, but I'll stop.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's great.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you, both

         16  for the questions you asked and the questions you

         17  did not ask. Thank you, Council Member Brewer.

         18                 Council Member Jackson and then

         19  Council Member James. And I guess I will, I know the

         20  Commissioner has been here awhile so we'll all try

         21  and be succinct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'll try to

         23  be, if at all possible. Depending on the answers, of

         24  course.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: It was directed
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          2  at myself.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Commissioner,

          4  I just want to follow up on your presentation and

          5  your report on the Minority Woman-Owned Business

          6  legislation that was passed, signed by Mayor

          7  Bloomberg on the 29th.

          8                 Are we on target as far as moving

          9  forward in the implementation?

         10                 I understand that you've met with

         11  agencies and what have you, but are you on target

         12  and what is the feedback you're getting from

         13  agencies as far as moving forward in the

         14  implementation since your agency is responsible for

         15  this?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: If I may, I'll

         17  give a broad brushed, and turn it over to Kerri.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sure.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Because she's

         20  been living this day in and day out.

         21                 My feeling is we are on target. The

         22  sense I have in talking to other commissioners

         23  throughout the Administration, is this is an issue

         24  that is being taken very seriously, you know,

         25  everyone from Department of Transportation to
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          2  Buildings to Health Department to Department of

          3  Education, which did not have a formal WMBE program

          4  before the local law, all are aware of the priority

          5  and the need to get this program up and running.

          6                 I think that the work that these two

          7  folks have done is tremendous. Going

          8  agency-by-agency, budget-by-budget, line-by-line,

          9  looking at, you know, what are your upcoming

         10  purchases that are taking place. Kerri Jew is

         11  running something similar to what Police

         12  Commissioner Ray Kelly would on Comstat, you know,

         13  looking at the opportunities that are available, you

         14  know, in the different agencies, and that's

         15  something that we're going to be able to stay on top

         16  of. We have a new need in the budget to add more

         17  analytical fire power. That's what we need. We need

         18  systems in place. I think our outreach team has done

         19  a good job, but it's no longer about outreach

         20  anymore. It's about making sure that agencies are

         21  held accountable, getting that score card up and

         22  running so we could start ranking, you know, the

         23  different agencies and find out who is doing good,

         24  who needs improvement and who needs a great deal

         25  more emphasis from our end.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I don't know,

          4  would you want to add anything more to that on your

          5  end?

          6                 The other area on this is our

          7  relationship with the Mayor's Office of Contracts.

          8  It's a good relationship, but we've got to build

          9  that system out so we can quickly identify and get

         10  back to this body with numbers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sure.

         12                 I think that, and I would like to

         13  hear more from your Deputy, but I think that in the

         14  short term, as far as sitting down with the

         15  agencies, looking at, you know, their contracts over

         16  the next six months, which is half of the year is

         17  important, but I would want to know what are they

         18  doing as far as infrastructure to ensure that the

         19  program is going to be running in accordance with

         20  the goals and objectives of the law. I mean, that's

         21  extremely important overall. Because quite frankly,

         22  I know that your people cannot sit and babysit them,

         23  and it's not about babysitting, it's about making

         24  sure that every agency understands what the law is

         25  and the goals and objectives of the law that we're
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          2  trying to achieve, and to ensure that they have the

          3  infrastructure by assigning a top-level official of

          4  each agency to ensure that the program is being

          5  implemented within their agency. And, so, if you can

          6  just speak to that and any other details that you

          7  may regarding the implementation of this particular

          8  law.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW:

         10  Absolutely. We are absolutely on target to implement

         11  this program under the law. First, with the ACCO

         12  meetings, with the Agency Chief Contracting

         13  Officers, I mean that's kind of a misnomer, really

         14  many agencies have been bringing Deputy

         15  Commissioners and Assistant Commissioners to these

         16  meetings and to their legal staff, which really

         17  shows that before they even come to the table to sit

         18  down with us, they've done their homework. They read

         19  the law. They have questions prepared, in terms of

         20  the legalities, as well as in terms of the

         21  procurement policies, and possibly competing

         22  procurement policies, and addressing those concerns

         23  and bringing them to the table to us so we can share

         24  them with the Mayor's Office of Contract Services

         25  and work them out before we even start implementing
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          2  with the program.

          3                 So, really they've been very, very

          4  cooperative. As we speak now, another agency is back

          5  in the office meeting with our Executive Director of

          6  Procurement, and our Director of Procurement,

          7  Director of Policy and Plan, and we'll have another

          8  one this afternoon. So, we've been doing these

          9  meetings on a regular basis.

         10                 We've also met with the Department of

         11  Education and EDC, although they are not City

         12  agencies under the law required to deutilization

         13  plans, but they are going to be very active

         14  participants, and we'll be doing utilization plans

         15  as well.

         16                 We have also drafted a utilization

         17  plan simply. What we are trying to do is to make

         18  this a streamlining process for the agencies so that

         19  their data collection and tracking and thinking

         20  about the procurement will be as proficient as

         21  possible. We understand they need to get their

         22  programs up and running, so we want this to fit in

         23  to what they do and just become a regular practice

         24  in terms of how they think about their procurements,

         25  how they structure their procurements, how they
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          2  structure their budgets.

          3                 In addition what we've also been

          4  doing is trying to reach out to as many MWBEs as

          5  possible who need to certify. We understand that to

          6  count towards the goals you need to be a certified

          7  company, and we want to give the agencies as many

          8  certified companies as possible to choose from. So,

          9  we've not only been reaching out directly to the

         10  companies who have identified themselves as

         11  interested in the programs, through signing up with

         12  the City as a vendor, but we've also been reaching

         13  to organizations who have relationships with MWBEs

         14  themselves, like Chambers of Commerce.

         15                 So, we've been reaching out to the

         16  entities that the businesses trust and that they've

         17  partnered with and then having them spread the word

         18  about the new program, and about the importance of

         19  registering and becoming certified with the City to

         20  take part.

         21                 Finally, as the Commissioner stated

         22  before, we've been working very closely with the

         23  Mayor's Office of Contract Services to ensure that

         24  the data collection and record-keeping processes are

         25  brought up to date and so that we can comply with
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          2  the reporting mechanisms that are a part of this

          3  program.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is there a

          5  systemwide computer tracking system that each agency

          6  has overall? Or are there individual programs that

          7  an agency is going to have?

          8                 I want to see a systematic approach

          9  to data collections and not just have a haphazard

         10  type situation based on whatever agency programs

         11  that they are. Do you have any specifics on that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes. I think as

         13  Kerry pointed out we are trying to centralize this

         14  process as much as possible and adapt the City's MFS

         15  system to incorporate the MWBE data.

         16                 As you know, Local Law 129 provides

         17  for semi-annual reporting on utilization of firms.

         18  But, however, it also takes a bigger step than the

         19  City has done before. I don't know any other

         20  jurisdiction by -- this will have to be broken down

         21  by the four industry categories, construction,

         22  professional services, goods, and standard services,

         23  as well as by the ethnicities, black, Hispanic,

         24  Asian and women. So, that's the new challenge that

         25  we're working with the Mayor's Office of Contracts
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          2  on building.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because

          4  yesterday when we began our budget hearing, in the

          5  next room in the Chambers, and the Budget Director,

          6  Mark Page, was in front of us, and I was asking

          7  specific questions about DOE with respect to their

          8  management, financial management system, being in

          9  line with the Office of Management and Budget, since

         10  that's the overall agency that deals with all of the

         11  budgets or all of the agencies and departments, and

         12  he indicated that DOE and OMB, they are not aligned

         13  and in sync as of yet, and that he's expecting that

         14  to be in sync by the fall of this particular year.

         15                 And I wanted to ask specifically,

         16  because his response to me was not an appropriate

         17  response for me. I wanted to know how much are you

         18  in line at this point in time? Are you 50 percent in

         19  line, 75 percent, how much more do you have to go,

         20  and I didn't get an answer, and I said to him if I

         21  was the Mayor his response to me would not be

         22  appropriate. I would not accept that answer.

         23                 So, I say to you that ensuring that

         24  all the agencies are in line with the data

         25  collection is extremely important and, quite,

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  frankly, I'm going to be asking this question on a

          3  continuous basis, because I would want to know as a

          4  co-chair of the Black, Latino and Asian Caucus, and

          5  as a member of former Chair of the Contracts

          6  Committee, if an agency or department is not in

          7  line, we will want to know that to ensure that

          8  there's compliance with the law, and also that

          9  everyone is on the same page here.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And I appreciate

         11  that.

         12                 You know, I guess what we're not

         13  saying is FMS and the system that was developed for

         14  procurement does not have the fields, if you will,

         15  for the information that we're asking. So, I think

         16  these individual efforts that we're making with

         17  agencies are much more important, you know, in

         18  ensuring that the message gets out to the agencies

         19  and getting help.

         20                 There is many more minority and

         21  woman-owned businesses that are out there that are

         22  not certified that don't come up on the computer

         23  list. We just don't know. You know, they were never

         24  asked. You know, when the system was built, it

         25  doesn't break it down by sectors. And that
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          2  complicates given the size and the magnitude of the

          3  procurement process in New York.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, is it

          5  possible that you -- I don't know, I personally

          6  don't know as a lay person, I'm not in the business,

          7  but I don't know what are the requirements for a

          8  small business, if I'm a small black firm, what are

          9  the requirements to be certified? Do you have a list

         10  of all of the things that are required? Can you

         11  e-mail or fax that to my office? I need to know that

         12  in my mind, and when I'm talking to businesses, I

         13  can say, you know, you can contact the Small

         14  Business and you can get the list, or here is a copy

         15  of the things that are required.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: We can

         17  send that to you, but it's also available on line.

         18  We can send it to you as well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Just go on

         20  line?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: It's

         22  www.nyc.gov/getcertified.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Getcertified.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW:

         25  Getcertified, one word.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's easy.

          3                 And as far as my last question, Mr.

          4  Chairs, is I know that you're moving toward ensuring

          5  that all agencies and departments are in line with

          6  the law, and what about your staff overall that is

          7  going to implement this and bring it up to speed?

          8  Have you increased the number? What are you numbers?

          9  And what's the diversity of your staff with respects

         10  to that, especially since, you know, you're moving

         11  towards implementing a minority and woman-owned

         12  business law?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The staff has

         14  dramatically increased. I said this at hearings in

         15  the past. When I walked in the door three years ago,

         16  we had three people on MWBE. That was it. The

         17  procurement unit was completely separate, and to

         18  date we have 25 -- 24 people on staff going up to --

         19  we're going to be adding another five people to 30

         20  on diversity, you know, I think the numbers are

         21  excellent. You know, I asked for this number the

         22  other day and in terms of managers at SBS, 47

         23  percent of the 50 plus managers, classified

         24  managers, are folks of color, black, Hispanic,

         25  Asian, which has been remarkable. Your diversity in
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          2  the unit that you have built and developed has -- I

          3  don't know, do you want to comment?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: Among the

          5  managers in the unit there are -- we are all women.

          6  There are two Caucasian women, the rest are women of

          7  color.

          8                 In terms of the staff, I think we

          9  only have one white male on our staff of 24, the

         10  rest are people of color.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So this is

         12  the staff that is responsible for moving forward to

         13  ensuring that the agencies in implementing the

         14  minority and woman-owned business legislation?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I want to

         17  thank you very much, and I look forward to

         18  continuing to ask and to monitor this, because our

         19  job in the City Council is to ensure and that the

         20  laws are being implemented, and as you know, this is

         21  very, very important to the black, Latino and Asian

         22  Caucus, in the entire City Council, but more

         23  specifically to the Caucus, and following up is

         24  extremely important for the City of New York to

         25  ensure that all people in New York City receive the
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          2  type of business opportunities that our City has to

          3  offer.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I appreciate your

          5  help over the last couple of months.

          6                 We've had to work hard on this and

          7  you and your staff have been fantastic on this.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member James.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Before I begin

         14  my series of questions, much has been said this

         15  afternoon with regards to the construction trades

         16  industry and our inability to pierce in-roads in

         17  that particular industry, in that industry. And, so,

         18  I say to my colleagues, particularly the Chair of

         19  the Black, Puerto Rican and Asian Council, we've got

         20  to do more again to bring to bear opportunities in

         21  that industry for communities of color.

         22                 The construction trades industry for

         23  far too long has been on the regulation and

         24  jurisdiction of both City and State elected

         25  officials and they have been under mandates, they've
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          2  been under quart orders, and unfortunately, they

          3  fail to diversify their rents, and we as a

          4  legislative body have got to step up to the plate

          5  and bring them, and call them on the carpet.

          6                 It's, all the development that's

          7  going on in the City of New York, particularly in

          8  Downtown Brooklyn, and, again, the only person of

          9  color I see is the person who waves the flag. That's

         10  unacceptable in a City which is now majority

         11  communities of color.

         12                 Let me also say that in the

         13  Commission that the Mayor and Charlie Rengal sat

         14  one, and as well as this Andy sat on, again, I look

         15  forward to your recommendations. Apprenticeships is

         16  again not acceptable and insufficient as far as I'm

         17  concerned. Again, I have 100 men who come to my

         18  office on a daily basis with union cards in hand,

         19  live in the neighborhood who unfortunately cannot

         20  break rank, and who cannot get construction jobs in

         21  their own neighborhood. And that is a shame.

         22                 I was just outside at a press

         23  conference on AIDS and a gentleman came to the mike

         24  and said that he lives in Downtown Brooklyn and his

         25  rent has increased three-fold as a result of the
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          2  displacement that is happening in Downtown Brooklyn.

          3                 So, my question, and it's a segway

          4  from the questions that have been asked by Council

          5  Member Jackson, and it relates to the diversity of

          6  the workforce, and the Executive Management at SBS.

          7  It's my understanding, according to BIG, Blacks In

          8  Government, that the Executive Directors of the City

          9  Workforce Centers, who are all minorities and women,

         10  were recently pulled from their leadership positions

         11  at the centers and reassigned, and that the

         12  reassignment basically constitutes emotion, and that

         13  all of these staff members who are largely

         14  minorities were recalled and resigned. The question

         15  that I have to you, Mr. Walsh, Commissioner Walsh,

         16  who I have nothing but the utmost respect for, why

         17  were they pulled and why were they reassigned? And

         18  were these in fact demotions?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: No, they were

         20  absolutely not demotions. We created seven centers

         21  and, quite frankly, we have turned the reins over to

         22  the contractors, Wildcat, Goodwill, SeedCo, you go

         23  through the list, who have done a fantastic job, you

         24  know, at the different centers.

         25                 When we look at the staff and to look
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          2  at that is a demotion is a surprise. This is the

          3  first time I'm hearing it, and I've had a number of

          4  conversations in Brooklyn with Leonard Battle who is

          5  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Is he still

          7  there, Leonard Battle?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Leonard Battle is

          9  coming back to work with us on the community-based

         10  organization. This is one of the things that we have

         11  heard time and time again, is that the

         12  community-based organizations, the relationship with

         13  the community-based organizations where we have

         14  dozens of contracts, and our career centers, that

         15  the relationship is not as strong. So, we've

         16  developed a unit, similar to the way we've developed

         17  a unit with the private sector, to have people,

         18  seasoned people like Leonard Battle, like Henrietta

         19  Lyle, like Janet Clemenson, all people of color,

         20  from the different boroughs, to forge those

         21  relationships with the different, you know,

         22  organizations.

         23                 So, you know, in Brooklyn it might be

         24  with an organizational, like Opportunities for a

         25  Better Tomorrow, it might be with the Chamber, it
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          2  might be with a non-profit organization, and in that

          3  case Leonard Battle's job is to forge the

          4  relationship and encourage people who are walking

          5  into those -- you know, Gale Brewer mentioned, you

          6  know, our operations are primarily nine to five.

          7  These things go on 24/7, in terms of people looking

          8  for jobs, and Leonard's job is to make those

          9  connections.

         10                 When you have a contract in a center,

         11  9 Bond Street, and it's very limited and it's based

         12  on the performance of the contractor, it really

         13  doesn't make sense, because it becomes much more of

         14  an administrative job, than a program job.

         15                 And I would say, you know, for all of

         16  them it's a step up.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, using Mr.

         18  Battle as an example, and, again, this is according

         19  to Blacks In Government, which, again, has issued a

         20  scathing report with regards to the diversity and

         21  administrative positions, as well as executive

         22  positions in this administration, and they focus

         23  primarily right now on SBS, and what they tell me is

         24  that Mr. Battle and others are now quote/unquote in

         25  the field and in the past they were directors, they
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          2  held directorship positions, and, therefore --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Mr. Battle's

          4  salary hasn't changed in the, you know, if you want

          5  to call it executive offices. He's working more

          6  closely with the Deputy Commissioners and the

          7  Assistant Commissioners. You know, so it's, you

          8  know, it's a surprise to me, quite frankly, in terms

          9  of that account of it. You know, when you see the

         10  numbers and you feel good and the center is working

         11  and you have, you know, things taking place, you've

         12  contracted that service out.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mm-hmm.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That means you

         15  could end up bringing back staff who are assigned

         16  there, and allocate them to grow in many other

         17  areas.

         18                 My hope, my hope, quite frankly, is,

         19  you know, having Leonard back in the fold, if you

         20  will of 110, is for him to be going out to these

         21  local development corporations, whether it's East

         22  New York or Central or Coney Island, and look to

         23  plant that seed in many more places.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Not to focus on

         25  Mr. Battle --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And we have spent

          3  a lot of time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mm-hmm.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We have spent a

          6  lot of time with the individual managers of the

          7  different locations to explain that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Not to focus on

          9  Mr. Battle, it's also my understanding that staff in

         10  these workforce centers which were predominantly

         11  people of color, they have been reassigned as well,

         12  and if they have been reassigned, where have they

         13  been assigned to?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The individuals

         15  primarily have been brought back, we have created a

         16  unit focused on community-based organizations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mm-hmm.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And they are

         19  primarily in the unit that is dealing with

         20  community-based organizations.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: At some point

         22  in time, I would like to see a flow chart of this

         23  restructuring.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I'd be happy to

         25  give that to you. You know, with a clearcut
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          2  indication of the mission and what we're doing and

          3  what the plans are.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Sure.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I just want to

          6  lay it on the line, this in no way was a demotion.

          7  There was no changes in salary, and it was taking

          8  folks who had an oversight position to oversee

          9  contractors who are being paid by the City of New

         10  York for numbers and review and looking now to go to

         11  different non-profits and organizations to work with

         12  them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, would it be

         14  fair to characterize Mr. Battle's role as equivalent

         15  to an ACCO?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: No. I would

         17  compare his role to what many of our folks are doing

         18  in the unit where Mr. Battle used to be with the

         19  Local Development Corporations and Business

         20  Improvement Districts, encouraging those

         21  community-based organizations who have programs to

         22  come to us, to work with us and develop other

         23  workforce programs, customized training programs,

         24  learning about incentives, and quite frankly, you

         25  know, the more I think about it is having a greater
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          2  picture, if you will --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: -- Of all of what

          5  the agency could do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Now, who is

          7  currently running the centers now?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The centers are,

          9  we have a contract, you know, in Brooklyn it's with

         10  Goodwill.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And in Manhattan

         13  it's SeedCo. In the Bronx it is Wildcat, and Staten

         14  Island it's Arbor, Queens it is DB Grant.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And have those

         16  organizations replaced the executors with someone

         17  who was of similar race or gender?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I don't know the

         19  answer to that. I don't know the answer to that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I could get back

         22  to you on that, but I don't know the answer to that.

         23  I've been out to many of the -- I haven't been out

         24  to many, I've been out to all of the -- I've been

         25  out to all of the centers.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And there's a

          4  good deal of diversity among the staff, whether it's

          5  Wildcat, SeedCo or others.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. Perhaps

          7  as members of the Caucus, we ought to visit these

          8  centers ourselves and see for ourselves.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That would be

         10  great.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me move on

         12  to the Assistant Commissioners.

         13                 You know Mr. Michael Smith is close

         14  to the Borough of Brooklyn, and when he was let go,

         15  dismissed, retired, resigned, whatever, from the

         16  organization, there were ripples throughout the

         17  Borough of Brooklyn, as a result of his departure,

         18  whether voluntary or not.

         19                 And, again, BIG, again, has focused

         20  on SBS, and they tell me that there have been two

         21  African-American commissioners who have left the

         22  organization, and the question is why was two

         23  African-American Assistant Commissioners -- why two

         24  Assistant, or African-American Assistant

         25  Commissioners leave? And first answer the question
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          2  why?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Maria Buck, it

          4  was a good move for her.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes. And I'm

          6  about to meet with her in about 25 minutes. I have a

          7  meeting at Medgar Evers.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: So, I don't know

          9  how to comment on that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And Mr. Smith?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Mr. Smith has

         12  resigned from the agency.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And I don't think

         15  this is the place to be talking about personal

         16  issues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I'd like to

         18  talk to you personally about those two.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I would be happy

         20  to, but I don't think this is the place to be

         21  talking about personnel issues.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I understand.

         23                 Let me ask you about Mr. Buck and Mr.

         24  Smith, have they been replaced by people of color?

         25  African Americans in particular?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The district --

          3  the Neighborhood Development Unit has been

          4  reorganized. The position was not replaced. We did

          5  replace -- we did add a position as an Assistant

          6  Commissioner on an intergovernmental, which will

          7  primarily be focused on the Commission's work, and

          8  some of the workforce and MWBE issues, and we've

          9  hired a person who is of color.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Buck and

         11  Mr. Smith were your two highest ranking African

         12  Americans, and they are no longer there.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Right. But, I

         14  mean, to indicate that Maria Buck left on bad terms

         15  or negative --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I don't know.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: -- Terms --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I'm not

         19  indicating anything, I just want to know why.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Look, Council

         21  Member, I have 47 percent of my managerial workforce

         22  are people of color.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I have people who

         25  have gone through leadership training programs. I
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          2  have probably one of the most diverse internship and

          3  management programs. These are things that I'm very

          4  proud of.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: If you want to

          7  talk about personnel issues, I'd be happy to talk to

          8  you about that privately, but this is not the place

          9  to do that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Commissioner, I

         11  appreciate that, and I was going to get to that. And

         12  I was going to get to that number of 47 percent.

         13                 Of that 47 percent, how many are

         14  African American or Latino?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I could find out

         16  for you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Please.

         18                 And the only reason why the questions

         19  that have been asked is, that have been asked by me

         20  is that there has been a report issued by Blacks In

         21  Government, and as you know the report was a

         22  scathing criticism of the Bloomberg Administration,

         23  not only just the Bloomberg Administration, but the

         24  previous administrations, and with two of the

         25  highest-ranking African-American Assistant
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          2  Commissioners in her Administration, leaving for

          3  whatever purposes, whether or not it was voluntary

          4  or involuntary, I don't know, but the facts would

          5  help, and that's all that I was trying to get to,

          6  was the facts. And there's been a number of

          7  allegations, I just want to know the facts.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Fine.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And so we can

         10  have a private discussion with regards to

         11  highest-ranking African-Americans who are no longer

         12  there, who have not been replaced.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I indicated to

         14  you that we have recently hired an Assistant

         15  Commissioner which will focus on MWBE, which will

         16  work on the Construction Commission, will work on a

         17  number of other areas, that is African-American

         18  male.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You know, the

         20  big report talks about the imbalance of white males

         21  and white females to people of color in

         22  administrative and executive positions, and the fact

         23  that there is an imbalance should raise concern in

         24  this Administration, as well as in this body.

         25                 I mean, there's something wrong with
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          2  that picture, and it's just alarming when people

          3  call me and say, you know, these individuals who you

          4  ever had a relationship with, as well as the Black,

          5  Puerto Rican and Asian Caucus, as well as other

          6  conscious members of this City Council are no longer

          7  there, it's, I mean I think I have an obligation to

          8  pose a question.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I understand

         10  that. And if you go back to someone like a Leonard

         11  Battle who was a low middle manager, I don't even

         12  think he had a management title, if you will,

         13  Leonard Battle was handling a number of contracts in

         14  Brooklyn. It was I who took chances with Leonard

         15  Battle, promoted him up through the ranks, he will

         16  stay in the highest ranks in a management level, and

         17  promoted him. And I can go down through the list of

         18  people that I could proudly talk about. Bernadette

         19  Nation was just recognized by the Fund for the City

         20  of New York, as one of the few people, maybe six

         21  people in this City, that will get an award from the

         22  Fund for the City in the next two weeks, an African

         23  American woman.

         24                 If you go through my training and you

         25  go through the people that we've added to the staff
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          2  on all different levels, you will see a conscious

          3  effort in terms of adding diversity to the staff.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I

          5  appreciate that. It's just when the children of the

          6  City of New York, particularly children of color,

          7  it's really important that they see their image on

          8  the television, they see their image in positions of

          9  power throughout the City of New York, it has an

         10  impact on their psyche, and I am someone who will

         11  not be silent on this. So, thank you.

         12                 I just want to move on now to the

         13  programmatic issues. If my district we've got WAMA,

         14  Washington Avenue, VAMA, Vanderbilt Avenue, BAMA --

         15  no, NAMA, Nostrand Avenue. We've got Bedford Avenue,

         16  BAMA, we've got North Flatbush, which doesn't rhyme

         17  with anything, as well as other --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I think it's

         19  NOFAMA.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: What is it?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I don't know what

         22  the acronym is, I was just --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Keep your day

         24  job.

         25                 So, we've got a number of corridors
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          2  in my district, again, that need resources. I know

          3  they're not at the point where they can become busy,

          4  but some would think otherwise.

          5                 The question is, there's two

          6  questions: On North Flatbush Avenue, it's my

          7  understanding that that organization is not --

          8  cannot apply for certain grants because of the

          9  assessment of the real estate on Flatbush Avenue,

         10  particularly on the Park Slope side, and I just want

         11  to -- and that's a strip that I share with Council

         12  Member Yassky, and the second question is, can my

         13  other merchants, what is available to my other

         14  corridors, commercial corridors in my district, to

         15  bring them up to the level where they can become

         16  BIDs at some point in the future, working with Heart

         17  of Brooklyn?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Heart of Brooklyn

         19  is a great organization that we should be working

         20  with. We recently, not too long ago, had a program

         21  just like you're talking about, where we could end

         22  up taking some of the grassroot groups, and get them

         23  one first, get them their 501(c)(3) so they have

         24  non-profit status so they can apply for grants, not

         25  only through the government, but also through the
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          2  banks and foundations and everybody else.

          3                 It's amazing to me and surprising to

          4  me that many of these groups do not have their

          5  501(c)(3) status.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I could go

          8  through, I have to go through every single one of

          9  these groups for you to ensure that you have a

         10  501(c)(3) status, we could develop workshops, we

         11  could bring them through the process of first

         12  developing a local development corporation before

         13  you create a Business Improvement District so that

         14  you could make the ask, whether it's the banks or

         15  the form of government or foundations to make that

         16  happen, and that's been a priority of mine and if

         17  you give me a list of the different organizations,

         18  I'd be happy to bring them all in and make sure that

         19  we have an individualized workshop for it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, I would

         21  love to establish that workshop with you, because

         22  all of these organizations, I believe were not quite

         23  there to the point where they can apply for BIDs,

         24  but they obviously need some technical assistance,

         25  they need some start-up money, they need some
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          2  capital facade improvement, they need street

          3  furniture and the list goes on and on.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That is probably

          5  one of the biggest frustrations that I have as I go

          6  out to places. You know, you and I have talked about

          7  Washington Avenue in the past.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, ad

          9  infinitum.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And, one, getting

         11  the merchants and property owners lined up to

         12  believe that collectively they could have an impact

         13  and in some cases that it's going to cost them a

         14  little bit more in terms of time, effort and

         15  patience as a group, and we've been spending much

         16  more time on this in terms of providing technical

         17  assistance, in terms of having, you know, staff go

         18  out and work with the different avenues, you know,

         19  to help them, to point out that they have a

         20  violation and, you know, correct it.

         21                 We can't give out fines, but we could

         22  end up helping many small businesses.

         23                 So, these are things that are of a

         24  great interest. I would propose that in your

         25  district, we use a couple of examples of how it has
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          2  been done from the grassroot. I think the one that

          3  comes to mind quickly is what Pratt Institute has

          4  done --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:-- Working with

          7  Myrtle Avenue and how they have grown, so I could

          8  think of that in terms of pulling the others

          9  together.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right. It's,

         11  again, using an anchor and using it for marketing

         12  purposes and just to prop up the corridors. And

         13  we're using Heart of Brooklyn, and the cultural

         14  institutions, again, to attract a flow of activity

         15  to all of the corridors that I mentioned earlier.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You know, you

         17  made a comment and I don't want to duck it. You made

         18  a comment about North Flatbush.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And, you know,

         21  that probably has to do with the fact that the

         22  census tract says that they're not eligible for

         23  community development block grant money.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And I can only
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          2  say, you know, my experiences of running a local

          3  development corporation, that I wasn't eligible for

          4  community development block grant money and I was on

          5  East 14th Street, in the late eighties, early

          6  nineties, when we had, you know, one block between

          7  Second and Third Avenue that had 24, you know,

          8  vacancies, and I would bring groups down and, you

          9  know, look, this is a horrible condition.

         10                 We can help.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And what we've

         13  been able to do is help get them stabilized first,

         14  and then help point in a direction in terms of who

         15  is giving money for these type of programs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. I look

         17  forward to that, and Council Member Yassky will join

         18  you on North Flatbush and try to get them some

         19  resources.

         20                 And my very, very last question is,

         21  on the WMBE, are we setting up a revolving loan

         22  program and/or bond funds for small businesses that

         23  have a difficult time responding to RFPs because

         24  they don't have the insurance, a bonding program?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We do not.

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, thank

          3  you. And I look forward to the flow chart.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

          5                 Commissioner Walsh, I have just a few

          6  questions on areas that haven't been covered yet.

          7                 I want to start with some kind of

          8  technical stuff. I don't know if the budget, whoever

          9  it is in your shop that deals with the budget at the

         10  technical U of A level is here.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: He certainly is.

         12  This is Chaz Ali (phonetic).

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Terrific. The IBO

         14  prepared, the Independent Budget Office, prepared,

         15  as they've done for all the agencies, what they call

         16  a programmatic review of, in this case it's the 2006

         17  budget as of the November Financial Plan, and for

         18  your Department. And what they've done, and they did

         19  this for every agency, is try and describe your

         20  agency budget in more detail than is in the

         21  Executive Budget. So, for example, you have, your

         22  budget has one large U of A for Small Business

         23  Administration, and a number of smaller initiatives

         24  are included there, one large U of A for workforce

         25  development. Have you seen this IBO programmatic
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          2  review document?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I have not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Or I mean has

          5  somebody in the agency?

          6                 MR. ALI: It was just handed to me

          7  before I walked up here.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: You know what?

          9  This one is dated January 2006. I'm told that they

         10  did also prepare one for the Preliminary Budget, but

         11  this one is the one from January 2006, and I'm not

         12  sure I'm catching you unaware, again, maybe you

         13  haven't. But they took a look at, you know, as the

         14  2006 budget in January and broke it down

         15  programmatically. You know, I don't really know the

         16  IBO process, is this something that they give the

         17  agency for feedback before they publish it? One

         18  would think they would.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I haven't had a

         20  conversation with them.

         21                 Have you?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: All right. You

         23  know what then? I think that's one suggestion we can

         24  make to present to the agency for feedback.

         25                 What I would like to ask is, if you
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          2  take a look at it and tell us, and I guess we'll

          3  have an opportunity in the Executive Budget hearings

          4  to do this, whether it's accurate?

          5                 In other words, I'll just give you an

          6  example.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Go ahead.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: They've broken

          9  down the Workforce Development funding into four

         10  programs. There's the dislocated workers program,

         11  and what you're looking at, Commissioner, if I can

         12  interrupt, I don't think it does it in this detail.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I don't have it

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. There's a

         16  January one. I will get to you, and I understand if

         17  you haven't seen it, that's fine.

         18                 It breaks down the workforce

         19  development funding into four programs: Dislocated

         20  workers, which is about an $18 million program in

         21  2006. Adult training, which was a $35 million

         22  program. The one-stop centers which they have as a

         23  $20 million program, and then workforce

         24  administration at SBS, which they have as $3.6

         25  million.
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          2                 I understand you haven't looked at

          3  this. Although if you can tell me if you can, maybe

          4  it will sound right away to you like an accurate

          5  breakdown. If they do, then you can say so. If not,

          6  then what I would ask is whether you could get back

          7  and tell us if that's accurate, and I guess more to

          8  the point would be the proposed budget for 2007 in

          9  the Executive Budget.

         10                 I'd like to ask if you would be able

         11  to break down your, in this case, workforce

         12  development funding, along these lines. Is that

         13  something you can do?

         14                 MR. ALI: Yes, we will definitely look

         15  at the report. I want to make sure what they

         16  characterize as dislocated worker is the same thing

         17  we do. So, all of those things, before we guess on

         18  it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I will tell

         20  you that I'm going to make a suggestion to IBO that

         21  I think this was a really helpful process they went

         22  through, or at least potentially really helpful.

         23                 I'm going to suggest to them that for

         24  the next go-around they give you the draft so you

         25  can, you know, say if it's accurate or not. That
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          2  would be useful.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: No problem.

          5                 I want to ask about some things that

          6  are in the MMR about the efficacy of the workforce

          7  development programs, and, again, this is -- if I

          8  get it, the MMR does break down at least into

          9  dislocated worker. I guess it gives some figures for

         10  dislocated workers, and the kind of figures I'm

         11  looking at here, it gives figures for the number of

         12  workers that have come to the programs that you

         13  fund, the numbers that are then employed upon

         14  leaving the program and the numbers employed six

         15  months out; is that basically right?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: David

         17  Margalit, Small Business Services, Workforce

         18  Development.

         19                 That's essentially accurate in terms

         20  of conveying what's in the MMR. What's in the MMR is

         21  relatively limited to one particular definition of

         22  the population we serve, which is called dislocated

         23  workers, and those in general are people who are

         24  affected by some kind of structural shift in the

         25  economy. So, it's a narrower view of what we do than
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          2  what would probably be necessary to give you a

          3  picture.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. And indeed,

          5  you're Mr. Davison; is that right?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: I'm

          7  Dave Margalit.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Oh, I'm sorry.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: It's

         10  okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I apologize.

         12                 What I have here, we asked for some

         13  elaboration on the numbers that were in the MMR and

         14  now what I'm going to refer to was an e-mail that

         15  was sent to Neal Cromley, who is the Policy Analyst

         16  for the Small Business Committee, from Ethan

         17  Davidson, I think it is. I'm sorry.

         18                 And it gives some figures for the

         19  dislocated workers, but also more generally I'll

         20  just say what they are, there were 33 -- I'll give

         21  the exact number, 3,361 people served by the adult

         22  special populations programs, 1,435 people served by

         23  the dislocated worker programs, and then it says

         24  18,785 people served through the Workforce One

         25  centers, then it says parentheses (adults), I guess
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          2  that means adult special populations, and another

          3  almost 5,000, 4,955 people served by the Workforce

          4  One centers, parenthesis, (dislocated workers.) So,

          5  we're talking about roughly 24,000 people who came

          6  through the Workforce One Programs, 3,300 people

          7  served by the, you know, contracted out, special

          8  populations programs, roughly 1,400 people served by

          9  the contracted out dislocated workers programs. Does

         10  that sound right?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: It

         12  makes sense. The only thing that I would clarify is

         13  that the adults under the career centers would be

         14  the broad range of adults, not necessarily special

         15  populations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Got it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: Big

         18  carriers to the client.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, that's very

         20  helpful. That makes, of course, that would make

         21  sense. That's anybody who comes in, of course. Okay.

         22  That makes sense. Thank you.

         23                 And then it gives some numbers for

         24  kind of the success for these programs that, I'll

         25  just tell you what's in the e-mail, it says for the
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          2  dislocated workers program there was, as I said,

          3  1,400 people came in the door, and it says 1,147 of

          4  those were employed in the first quarter after exit,

          5  and 1,326 were employed in the third quarter after

          6  exit. That's almost everybody. 1,326 out of the

          7  1,435. Those are great numbers.

          8                 How are those derived? How do we know

          9  those numbers?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: There's

         11  two ways, and the numbers that you're looking at are

         12  all basically crunched by the State, and then spit

         13  back to us in a spread sheet.

         14                 That is how the numbers in front of

         15  you are derived.

         16                 We're doing a lot on our own to make

         17  sure that we can get numbers ahead of those cycles

         18  so we can manage our programs more effectively.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I'm sorry, just

         20  bear with me about the crunch by the State.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: Mm-hmm.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I apologize

         23  for going through detail, but I just want to

         24  understand these numbers.

         25                 How do you know that of the 1,435
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          2  people that came in from the dislocated worker

          3  programs, that 1,326 of them were employed the third

          4  quarter after exit?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: The

          6  State spits it back through wage reporting system

          7  data.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So, you get some

          9  name and identifying information of the people that

         10  have come in. And, again, I know it's detailed, but

         11  I'm just totally ignorant here. Is it you get all

         12  those names and identifying information, you give

         13  them to the state and they tell you back that these

         14  people were employed?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: That's

         16  accurate. That's a requirement of the grant that we

         17  get from the federal government pass-through the

         18  state, is that they are able to monitor, measure and

         19  provide that information.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. I mean,

         21  it's phenomenal. In other words, 90 percent of the

         22  people that come into the door on these programs,

         23  these are people who don't have a job, I gather,

         24  then they're employed, nine months after they get

         25  out they're employed, that's tremendous success. I'm
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          2  delighted that's true. I wanted to make sure it is

          3  true. I'm not saying it isn't, it's just such a high

          4  number that it made me wonder how it's reported. And

          5  so what you're saying is you get the names of the

          6  individuals that have come into the programs, you

          7  then give those names to the State and then they

          8  tell you back these people are employed?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: There's

         10  a big difference between what happens in a Workforce

         11  One Career Center, and what happens with the

         12  contracts where you just illuminated success, and

         13  the main difference is that those contracts, those

         14  dislocated worker contracts, you basically can go

         15  out and recruit people and you select, I have 300

         16  slots in my contract, I'm going to try to help these

         17  300 people get employed.

         18                 In a Workforce One Career Center, you

         19  don't have that flexibility. You're on the line for

         20  pretty much serving everybody who walks in the door.

         21                 The premises you stated around data

         22  collection and how we do it is accurate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. Yes, and

         24  then I won't go through the exact numbers but

         25  they're pretty similar for the special population,
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          2  as it turns out, that's also pretty high. It's

          3  slightly less, but it's pretty high number that

          4  these programs were able to employ.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT:

          6  Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And then for the

          8  Workforce One, it's a much lower number. You've just

          9  started to explain why that is. You're saying it's

         10  a, I guess harder to serve population, because the

         11  people served by those contract out programs are

         12  easier to serve, I guess is the hypothesis, because

         13  there are people that the programs decided they can

         14  help.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: Right.

         16  You don't get to pick and choose. It's universal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Do you have a

         18  sense of what the numbers are for Workforce One? How

         19  many people come into Workforce One of the 23,740

         20  people came in in Fiscal Year 2005, how many of them

         21  have jobs, you know, three months out or six months

         22  out?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: Well,

         24  there's two components of that. What the State is

         25  also measuring is not whether the program had
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          2  anything to do with that person getting a job, but

          3  it's why that person is in a job.

          4                 So, we know consistently that about

          5  65 percent plus of the people who come into these

          6  centers wind up in a job.

          7                 What we're working on all the time is

          8  how can we make sure we have more to do with those

          9  individuals getting jobs, thereby influencing the

         10  probability, and their prospects for getting a job,

         11  and what we've been able to do, as Rob alluded to in

         12  his testimony, is we've grown the number of people

         13  that we're actually helping get a job in these

         14  career centers by 50 percent a quarter for each of

         15  the last seven quarters, and now placing more than

         16  1,000 people a month.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So, you're saying

         18  that you expect to place some 12,000 people this

         19  year?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARGALIT: Yes, we

         21  have a target of about 15,000 individuals. Places

         22  here, plus we know a number of individuals who find

         23  employment on their own, it's good to see they're

         24  using our resources coming in, signing up for

         25  services, it will be lower touch point, but a number
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          2  of individuals beyond that 15,000 will also wind up

          3  in jobs.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay.

          5                 Here's my question, I'm just curious

          6  to get your thoughts, Commissioner. I mean, if these

          7  programs can take, people come into them and then 90

          8  percent of them are in jobs, we should be looking

          9  for, why isn't it a great investment to double or

         10  triple the amount of resources we give to these

         11  programs?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We have. You

         13  know, this is an area where we have been growing.

         14  The career centers, in my testimony I said we went

         15  from three to seven, you know, then I talked about

         16  some of the partnerships that we've had, it hasn't

         17  been that easy. It's meant us, you know, tightening

         18  up, obviously, and expecting a lot more from the

         19  contractors and following up and give credit where

         20  credit is due. It's been the work of people like

         21  David and Marilyn and others that have increased

         22  those numbers and the credibility of those centers.

         23                 It's obviously a real shift that we

         24  have made with the Workforce Centers, and to get

         25  more organizations and more individuals, you know,
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          2  to tap into the centers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I know you said

          4  you're looking at a cut in WIA.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Ten million

          6  dollars.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I'm looking, and

          8  I see that last year the budget that was adopted

          9  assumed only, a relatively -- bear with me, a much

         10  smaller amount of money for WIA, something like 56

         11  million, and then you ended up getting an additional

         12  14 million during the year, so that you spent around

         13  70.

         14                 Are we expecting that to happen

         15  again? When you said there is a $10 million cut that

         16  you're facing, is that that same phenomenon.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You know, you

         18  can't predict what money you're going to get from

         19  Albany and whether it's going to be discretionary

         20  money. And you certainly can't count on it, when you

         21  have long-term contracts.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So that's what

         23  that was last year, when it went up from 56 to 70?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I believe this is

         25  where I get out of my league on some of these
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          2  specific budgets, so I'm going to turn it back over

          3  to David Margalit or Chaz Ali, our Assistant

          4  Commissioner.

          5                 Go ahead.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ALI: I think

          7  it's a factor of two things. One is that a formula

          8  allocation was actually about $62 million last year,

          9  and then we had some money we were spending on from

         10  carry-over from the prior year, which should be to

         11  the tune of about eight to ten-million dollars.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And this year, in

         13  terms of carry over, we don't have the same amount

         14  of carry over.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ALI: Of

         16  course, it's been reduced year-by-year. The money

         17  expires also.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I mean, that was

         19  one of the biggest criticisms that in taking over

         20  the responsibilities of this agency. We had a lot of

         21  money that we were not spending when you have three

         22  centers, now we have seven centers, we were just not

         23  spending the money. We're spending the money on

         24  vouchers, and maybe some of the various contracts we

         25  had.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I got you. So,

          3  last year when we adopted the budget, it said 56

          4  million for workforce development, that was before

          5  you knew for sure what the federal allocation was,

          6  and it wound up being 62 you're saying?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ALI: I can

          8  tell you the federal allocation was 62. I don't

          9  remember what it was when you adopted it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. All right.

         11  And then over and above that, there was unspent

         12  money that you were able to tally up, you know, when

         13  you were finished tallying up from the end of the

         14  fiscal year, and that brought the total amount that

         15  you were able to put into the budget for this year,

         16  and the January, or this was a February mod, to 70.

         17  I get it now. And do you expect to have that money

         18  left over again this year so you expect to have the

         19  same phenomenon, or not so much?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ALI: There

         21  will be some smaller carry-over. You kind of need to

         22  plan for that to manage your budget, but it's going

         23  to be significantly less.

         24                 And we also at this stage, we don't

         25  expect really any formula allocation higher than

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  what we're hearing right now from the federal

          3  government. The State is taking a big cut too. Our

          4  funding is a product of both how much money is being

          5  invested by the federal government in this program

          6  across the country, and a relative share of

          7  employment vis-a-vis other municipalities and

          8  states. So since our unemployment rate declined,

          9  vis-a-vis what was happening around the State and

         10  the country, we stand to take this, what amounts to

         11  a 17 percent cut, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Got it. Okay.

         13  Well, that's a real problem then.

         14                 Okay, thank you. That was really

         15  helpful.

         16                 I just want to ask quickly about the

         17  industrial retention fund the Department is now

         18  poised to implement. This is, the components, as I

         19  recall, there is some moving assistance funds,

         20  there's energy reduction, and some funds for

         21  predevelopment of dedicated manufacturing space.

         22  There's a program for assistance for businesses that

         23  are remaining in the rezoning district.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ALI: That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: My question about

          3  them is this, and it may be a technical question, do

          4  you expect to be able to spend that in this fiscal

          5  year?

          6                 MR. HUM: Just for the record, my name

          7  is Carl Hum, Director of the Mayor's Office of

          8  Industrial and Manufacturing Businesses.

          9                 Good afternoon, Chairman Yassky. In

         10  regards to your question, whether we expect to spend

         11  it by the end of this year, certainly my aim is to

         12  enter a contract as soon as possible with all the

         13  individual groups that have been identified for

         14  funding, and with your help and your assistance in

         15  regards to I guess making our case to OMB in regards

         16  to possibly extending the fund allocation to the

         17  next year, I think that would be quite helpful.

         18                 After all, there is maybe four months

         19  left to this Fiscal Year and I think that to put

         20  these groups under the pressure of trying to spend

         21  this money in that time is going to be a little bit

         22  of a burden.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, because

         24  there's nothing in the Preliminary '07 budget for

         25  this. Understandably this was a one-time proposal,
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          2  but if I'm right, if you're not going to be able to

          3  spend it this year, then you would need to have

          4  something in the Executive Budget to reflect this.

          5                 So, can you tell me, is it the

          6  Administration's intention to have that in the

          7  Executive Budget --

          8                 MR. HUM: It is certainly the

          9  Administration's intention to make that case to OMB,

         10  and certainly, hopefully with your help, and Council

         11  Member Reyna's help, and Council Leadership help, we

         12  can get the message across.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 I have just a couple of also policy

         16  points here. Something we haven't talked about, and

         17  it's under the agency.

         18                 Last year the Council adopted a tax

         19  credit for film and TV production in studios in New

         20  York City, which I think according to the Mayor's

         21  Office, as far as I can tell, was tremendously

         22  successful.

         23                 Have you looked at expanding that

         24  credit in the coming year?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I have not.
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          2                 The person that probably would be

          3  closer to this is our Assistant Commissioner Dunn

          4  and Giopetro (phonetic).

          5                 Andy, I don't know if you have

          6  anything to add on that, but it has been successful,

          7  and it would be a question that Catherine Oliver,

          8  the Commissioner of that office would shed more

          9  light on.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay. I guess

         11  it's not our -- we don't have them as an office come

         12  separately in these budget hearings.  I guess it's

         13  something I'd like to pursue with you in the hearing

         14  on the Executive Budget.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Good.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: So, between now

         17  and then, I would ask you to look at that.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Let's do that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I have some

         20  questions that are generated by the Atlantic Yards

         21  proposal.

         22                 As you're no doubt familiar with, the

         23  proposed development of an arena and some housing

         24  and some office space in Atlantic Yards is something

         25  that the Administration supports, and was somewhat
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          2  involved. I think was not actually a signatory, but

          3  somebody from the Administration witnessed a

          4  Community Benefits Agreement that was signed

          5  relating to the Atlantic Yards project. And that

          6  community benefits agreement envisions a bunch of

          7  worker training and job placement initiatives. My

          8  question is, can we get started on those? And here

          9  is what, I guess is behind that is, I still

         10  encounter, and it's a project that I would like to

         11  see go forward, I encounter some skepticism out in

         12  the community as to whether the promise benefits are

         13  real, and it seems to me that it would be certainly

         14  in the interest of those who would want to see the

         15  project move forward to make the case as credible as

         16  possible that the community benefits are real.

         17                 So, my question is, can we get

         18  started on that?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Well, let's get

         20  back to the Atlantic Yards first. The SBS, the

         21  agency was not a party to those agreements. That was

         22  an agreement between Build and the private developer

         23  in this case.

         24                 What we have been working on is the

         25  Citywide effort coming out of the commission, the
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          2  preapprentice programs, the work that we're doing

          3  which strive the work that we're doing with the high

          4  school, and then some of the audits of existing

          5  companies, you know, to ensure that they're

          6  complying with the law. That's been our focus in

          7  terms of getting the resources to do that job and to

          8  make those things happen.

          9                 Andy, I don't know if you want to add

         10  anything to that, but it's, you know, that's been

         11  the focus. We've had conversations with Build, we've

         12  had conversations with the developer and it's always

         13  our understanding that this is something that they

         14  were doing in working with the local community.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Maybe then I

         16  should step back for a second and say do you see

         17  there being City responsibilities or City

         18  obligations, I recognize the City was not a party to

         19  the agreement. Although, there was, and I'm not sure

         20  I remember who the official was, but someone from

         21  the Bloomberg Administration signed the document as

         22  a witness, which I guess was, I'm told by my staff

         23  here that it was the Mayor, that it was the Mayor

         24  himself. And I'll tell you, I don't have a

         25  recollection whether that's the case or not, but I
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          2  remember the big ceremony.

          3                 So, my question is, you know, I'm not

          4  suggesting that the Administration has to this date

          5  committed to anything at all specific here. So, let

          6  me just then say, do you see the City as

          7  participating in the implementation of the Community

          8  Benefits Agreement, and how?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: You know, invited

         10  to the party, we will come. And if needed, we will.

         11  There's been so many agreements that take place

         12  often between communities and private developers.

         13                 You know, I think back to my days

         14  when I ran a Business Improvement District and Local

         15  Development Corporation, where the City was fine to

         16  sit on the sidelines because it worked in the local

         17  community.

         18                 If you see fit, if the community sees

         19  fit of us playing a role, we'll play a role and see

         20  where we can be of help.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Then let me,

         22  rather than belabor this, and I don't have the

         23  community benefits agreement here in front of me.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I will get you a
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          2  copy. I'm sure you have it somewhere, but I will get

          3  you a copy. It does in several places speak of the

          4  City doing this or that, and I think it's phrased as

          5  "the parties" who will work to get the City

          6  government to do this or that. Some of them are

          7  unrelated to you, but some of them are workforce

          8  development and job placement, which I gather would

          9  be in your bailiwick.

         10                 So, what I'm going to ask you to do

         11  is, again, come to our Executive Budget hearing and

         12  being prepared to discuss whether you do see the

         13  City doing, undertaking the responsibilities that

         14  are discussed in the CBA, and if so, then I'll

         15  certainly ask whether there's funding for those

         16  things in the Executive Budget.

         17                 I'm sure there isn't now, because

         18  that's not something that would have come before

         19  you, but that's a question that I'll be asking on

         20  the Executive Budget.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Good. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And last, well,

         23  next to last, just one thing I would like to bring

         24  to your attention is, we have, I thought, a terrific

         25  hearing of the Small Business Committee and the
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          2  Transportation Committee on the impact of tickets,

          3  particularly double-parking tickets on businesses

          4  that have to make deliveries. And I think it was

          5  your colleague, Commissioner Stark, who just does a

          6  superb job, who came in and testified about a

          7  program that they've developed I think in

          8  conjunction with you --

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Mostly in the

         10  manufacturing and industrial areas that Carl is

         11  working with.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: -- To let

         13  companies kind of register and then have their fines

         14  for expeditious delivery, so-called, reduced or

         15  eliminated, as they're entitled to.

         16                 Here is what came out of that,

         17  though. Is that there is kind of an element of

         18  absurdity to the City issuing literally hundreds of

         19  thousands of tickets. I think the total number was

         20  something like 500,000 of which 200,000 maybe were

         21  reduced or eliminated.

         22                 There's a little bit of absurdity to

         23  issuing a lot of tickets that they don't expect to

         24  be reduced, to be enforced, and so Commissioner

         25  Stark undertook, and I would ask you to join with
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          2  this, in working with the Police Department to train

          3  their folks not to issue their tickets in the first

          4  place. That's part one.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Part two is what

          7  came out of that hearing is the participants thus

          8  far in the program are largely big companies, UPS,

          9  and FedEx and Coca Cola, which is fine. That's

         10  great. They should be. But in some ways, it created

         11  an unintended, you know, double standard where now

         12  UPS doesn't pay adult parking fines, but my, you

         13  know, the small business that I represent in

         14  Greenpoint largely are, because they don't know

         15  about the program.

         16                 So, this is absolutely to be expected

         17  in implementation of something new. Commissioner

         18  Stark undertook to do aggressive outreach with small

         19  businesses to get them to sign up, and I would just

         20  ask for your agency to --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We've begun doing

         22  it in manufacturing and industrial.

         23                 It raises another issue in some of

         24  the retail corridors. I live right off Smith Street.

         25  It's a metered street and has deliveries, there's a
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          2  lot of restaurants and, you know, on a block face,

          3  in some cases there are not places for truck zones,

          4  and to drop off the product. So, there is double

          5  parking that takes place as a result.

          6                 As I've gone around the City to

          7  different corridors and said, you know, how about

          8  loading zones or truck zones, don't want to take the

          9  meters out. It raises some really complicated issues

         10  throughout the City and I've had this conversation

         11  with the Transportation Commissioner, heads of Local

         12  Development Corporations, and Business Improvement

         13  Districts, allowing the flexibility of delivery of

         14  truck zones, loading zones, in areas where right now

         15  there are a lot of meters.

         16                 I have to tell you the other

         17  situation, you know, when you talk about meters and

         18  parking and double parking, is a Sunday issue, and

         19  that's something we should be talking about

         20  particularly in areas where there are no churches,

         21  and there are a lot of restaurants and bakeries and

         22  coffee shops and bookstores.

         23                 Residents now know, and you could end

         24  up parking on my neighborhood, Court Street or Smith

         25  Street, and you know, what you have done in essence
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          2  is take away a spot for a small business and led to

          3  other sorts of congestion, and that's something else

          4  we should be tackling.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Understood. I

          6  remember that discussion clearly.

          7                 The last thing is, and then I do want

          8  to return to the topic I raised at the beginning, is

          9  this health care issue.

         10                 And I thought about it, I'm not sure,

         11  Commissioner, that we really had a chance to discuss

         12  this. We only discussed it with your team there.

         13                 I am just absolutely convinced that

         14  we would do an enormous service, both to the

         15  employees and to the small businesses in the City by

         16  giving them some assistance with health care.

         17                 You know, I'm sure, of the

         18  HealthWorks Program that Brooklyn Chamber of

         19  Commerce has started, which provides an extremely

         20  small discount compared to what is available at the

         21  marketplace. Still there are some folks that have

         22  been ready to take them up on that, but for most

         23  companies, it's still just not affordable.

         24                 And then they're in this box. They

         25  got people coming in and then the companies are more
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          2  eloquent than I would be, that they have employees

          3  that are terrific or people they would like to hire,

          4  but who will take less well-paying jobs, jobs that

          5  they don't want, would not want as much but to have

          6  health care, because that's what they need.

          7                 Of course, you know, that makes

          8  perfect sense. So, without healthcare, they really

          9  can't attract the workforce they need, but if

         10  they're going to pay for it now, they're undertaking

         11  a burden that many of them simply can't sustain.

         12                 Now, when we were talking about the

         13  Industrial Retention Fund, and I had suggested using

         14  some of that for health care, and it was the

         15  Administration's position that that was not what

         16  that, your preferred use for that fund. Okay, I

         17  understand, and that's over and done with, but as we

         18  now start this next year's budget process, it's

         19  absolutely my intention to seek here, and as the

         20  budget moves through the Council, funding to expand

         21  that HealthWorks Program, both in terms of the

         22  number of people it can serve, and in terms of the

         23  level of the assistance that it can provide.

         24                 And I'm told since my opening

         25  statement here, I guess we've scheduled a hearing on
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          2  this topic for later this month, March 29th. So, if

          3  you like, you can, and you may or may not know about

          4  it, I guess the invitations went out -- no, they

          5  have not gone out. We've got a date and a hearing

          6  and a room and so forth. So, I'll tell you now, we

          7  have scheduled a hearing on this for March 29th. If

          8  you like, we can discuss it then instead.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Just thinking

         10  about it, you know, when I came in four years ago,

         11  there was a -- what I heard from small businesses

         12  was, you know, basically stick to your knitting

         13  (sic), and help us with the things that you really

         14  can have an impact on. And we could help them with

         15  other agencies in terms of navigate government, or

         16  help, you know, on some of the cases, whether it's

         17  double-parking or a street light out, or some of the

         18  things surrounding 3-1-1.

         19                 The other was access to capital. You

         20  know, putting together whether it's a step-by-step

         21  plan to put a business plan together or, you know, I

         22  want to open my bakery in Fort Green or Boerum Hill

         23  or in another place, but I've been turned down a

         24  number of times, and that's the stuff that Michael

         25  Hecht and Michael Newhouse and so many other people
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          2  have done.

          3                 My concern on the health care is can

          4  we sustain it. You know, and how much, and, you

          5  know, can we put something in place that's going to

          6  go beyond me and you and, you know, with the others

          7  in the body, beyond the number of years that we'll

          8  be serving. That's the complexity.

          9                 I've had conversations with Kenneth

         10  Adams at the Brooklyn Chamber, I know they've been

         11  working. I wonder out loud, quite frankly, whether

         12  our agency is the right agency. We don't have the

         13  expertise in that area. We could be a conduit,

         14  certainly, but we don't have the expertise in the

         15  agency. We're gaining the expertise in areas like

         16  step-by-step business planning and financing and

         17  other things along those lines. This is one that has

         18  been out of our arena, if you will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Well, I

         20  understand it would be a new initiative along the

         21  lines of some of the really creative and I think

         22  effective new initiatives you've pioneered, or if

         23  not along those lines, along with those.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I guess what I
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          2  would say just in terms of the expertise point is,

          3  really, there are at least a couple, there is the

          4  Brooklyn Chamber of Commercial --

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: There is an

          7  organization Working Today, there are folks out

          8  there doing this.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Sara Horowitz.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Indeed.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: That, you know,

         13  the City's role can be enabling them to expand their

         14  efforts. It doesn't mean recreating a wheel and just

         15  doing something all together new.

         16                 So, we can explore this at greater

         17  length, but it is certainly my intention to seek

         18  that. My hope is that it's something that, my hope

         19  is something that you would embrace, and failing

         20  that I guess it's my hope that you won't take the

         21  position this is something that even if the monies

         22  that some of the Council decides is worth spending,

         23  you know, that you'll say we're not going to do it.

         24                 Because I think that it's an

         25  important, very, very important topic to be
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          2  addressing.

          3                 I'd like to work together with you on

          4  how we can do it.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Well, why don't

          6  we talk more about this --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Done.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Great.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Listen, thank

         10  you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: You've been

         13  extraordinarily patient. I will tell you that we, I

         14  think for the next budget hearing we'll impose some

         15  time limits on everybody. We'll ask for you to have

         16  a time limit on your presentation, and time limits

         17  on the questions, so that you can plan your schedule

         18  a little more easily.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you very

         23  much, Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And thank you,

         25  Commissioner, but the hearing is not yet over. We
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          2  have additional witnesses.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I will ask

          5  all of the witnesses to come up together.

          6                 We have Keith Gamble, Ann Brug

          7  (phonetic), Nancy Biberman and Timothy Johnson.

          8                 I believe that exhausts the list of

          9  people who have expressed an interest in testifying.

         10  If there is anyone not on that list, just please

         11  make yourself known to the Sergeant-At-Arms. And

         12  I'll ask the witnesses, we'll start now with the

         13  timer, I will ask witnesses to keep your remarks to

         14  three minutes.

         15                 Should we start with the gentleman

         16  stage right?

         17                 MR. JOHNSON: Hello.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Hello.

         19                 MR. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. My name

         20  is Timothy Johnson, and I'm the Director of

         21  Workforce Development Initiatives at the United Way

         22  of New York City.

         23                 The United Way creates and supports

         24  strategic initiatives that address route causes of

         25  critical human care problems in order to achieve
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          2  measurable improvement in the lives of the City's

          3  most vulnerable residents in the communities.

          4                 First, I'd like to thank all of the

          5  City Council, particularly the members of this

          6  Committee, along with Chairman Yassky and Chairman

          7  White, who is no longer with us, for your leadership

          8  and supporting initiatives that will provide greater

          9  employment opportunities to all New Yorkers.

         10                 I'd also like to acknowledge the

         11  great job the City's, the Council's Workforce

         12  Development Group has done under the leadership of

         13  Councilman Barron, and the hard work of some of your

         14  Committee members who were here previously today.

         15                 This testimony is submitted to

         16  underscore the importance of increasing the funding

         17  to workforce development initiatives within the

         18  City, now the Council's current Workforce

         19  Development Initiative NYC Works, administered by

         20  the United Way.

         21                 There is a crisis in New York City.

         22  There is an aging out of the current workforce in

         23  every sector, coupled with the lack of funding for

         24  workforce development. The sole public funding

         25  source for workforce development is the Workforce
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          2  Investment Act dollars, which has a continued trend

          3  of decreasing dollars flowing into the City from the

          4  State and federal government.

          5                 It is important to continue and, in

          6  fact, to increase the funding available to

          7  non-profits to serve the jobless and the unemployed

          8  in our City.

          9                 As New York City moves toward a

         10  globalized workforce with increasing sectoral

         11  trends, the need for an available skilled labor

         12  force, specifically trained for the needs of

         13  employers and emerging industries are critical.

         14                 The employment to population ratio, a

         15  more complete measure of rising joblessness than the

         16  unemployment rate, is approximately 54.1 percent in

         17  New York City.

         18                 Meaning that only a little more than

         19  half of the working age individuals in New York City

         20  are actually employed at this point.

         21                 There are also specific populations

         22  in New York City that continue to suffer from high

         23  percentage of unemployment.

         24                 As Mayor Bloomberg cited in his

         25  January State of the City Address, the City is
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          2  seeking to launch an aggressive public/private

          3  partnership to reduce the number of New Yorkers

          4  living in poverty, with concentrated efforts in

          5  high-need communities.

          6                 The NYC Works Initiative approach has

          7  been to identify those high needs communities and

          8  through a partnership with the women of color policy

          9  network at NYU Wagner College, we have mapped out

         10  those priority areas with the low employment

         11  population ratios.

         12                 Additionally, we must engage the

         13  City's disconnected youth and provide education and

         14  training that respond to the need of employers, and

         15  allows youth to connect the jobs that guarantee

         16  economic security.

         17                 New York City's Young Adult Task

         18  Force has stated that there is currently 200,000

         19  disconnected youth in New York City, that's not

         20  currently connected either to educational

         21  institutions or employment.

         22                 City Council funded programs, like

         23  NYC Works, can help gain, help youth gain the

         24  pre-GED and GED credentials, as well as vocational

         25  training needed to find employment opportunities
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          2  with benefits and career ladder opportunities.

          3                 Lastly, workforce development funding

          4  is needed to build and strengthen New York City's

          5  infrastructure of innovative, high quality and

          6  targeted employment training and placement programs.

          7                 While using the collaborative model

          8  used in NYC Works, it helps ensure that individuals

          9  receive the full range of pre-employment services

         10  that are critical to a person achieving the personal

         11  and family stability one needs to retain a job.

         12                 Programs are focused on

         13  collaborations, also promote the transfer of

         14  knowledge from one community-based organization to

         15  the other. Opportunities like these will allow the

         16  workforce development organizations to learn and

         17  improve from one another.

         18                 In closing, I'd like to thank the

         19  Council again for its ongoing interest and

         20  commitment to providing the City with workforce

         21  funding, and urge you to forge new partnerships,

         22  public and/or private, to manage this crisis.

         23                 The fact that 45.9 percent of working

         24  age residents in the City are not currently employed

         25  is a detriment to the quality of life that we all
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          2  desire. The consequences are too dire for us to walk

          3  away and not create solutions.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

          6                 Let's hear from the rest of the

          7  panel, and then we'll have questions.

          8                 MS. LESOLD: I'll make my comments

          9  very brief.

         10                 I'm Constance Lesold, and I'm a

         11  member of the Fire Committee for Community Board 8,

         12  the Eastern Parkway Coalition, Latinas Against Fire

         13  Cuts, et cetera. I've lived in the Central Brooklyn

         14  community for 40 years, and I am very concerned

         15  about the way the City, the City Council, the Mayor,

         16  et cetera, are looking at the Ratner Project, in

         17  terms of economic development in the area.

         18                 I am going to put it out here that

         19  the community right now of Crown Heights and Bed

         20  Stuy's main feeling about that area, is that it's

         21  being burned down. That's not economic development.

         22                 The latest tragedy, and maybe it

         23  isn't the latest, occurred at 1003 Pacific Street,

         24  two Fridays ago, come this Friday, where four people

         25  were killed, another person was killed on the street
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          2  by fire, Halsey Street had a deadly fire within the

          3  last couple of weeks. This is not economic

          4  development. It is the opinion of most of the

          5  neighbors. I do not know, I am not a police person,

          6  we only have 48 fire marshals in the field for the

          7  whole City, so I don't know how much of an

          8  investigation we will ever get for all these

          9  suspicious fires, but we had nine suspicious fires

         10  in Crown Heights Community Board 8 alone during the

         11  month of January. That doesn't count these.

         12                 You know, we are doing everything we

         13  can with emergency meetings with the Fire Committee.

         14  We had a 5:30 a.m. conference and vigil planned for

         15  this Friday again at 1033 Pacific Street. We

         16  encourage everybody to come out. We must put a stop

         17  to these arsons.

         18                 We feel in the community, most people

         19  feel that everybody thinks they're sitting on a

         20  goldmine in all of Crown Heights and Bed Stuy right

         21  now, and that's it's open field. It's an old

         22  American tradition to burn things down that you

         23  don't want, and, you know, do whatever you want to,

         24  but it's got to stop.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. LESOLD: And we need your help.

          3  This is not economic development.

          4                 Let me say in closing that part of

          5  Brooklyn as an anchor for the area is not

          6  sufficient. Part of Brooklyn history has been one of

          7  putting on fees in the poorest community in -- one

          8  of the poorest communities in the United States, in

          9  that congressional district, and they have not moved

         10  backwards in that practice.

         11                 If you're going to serve everybody in

         12  that area, you can't just talk about putting people

         13  to work when they're burning out of their houses.

         14  And their cultural institutions are no longer

         15  accessible to them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay.

         17                 MS. LESOLD: You just can't do

         18  economic development that way. So, I beg for you for

         19  help from the economic development community. I know

         20  you know the problems. You've been around there.

         21  But, please, look at it from the standpoint of the

         22  people who have been burned out and put in motels

         23  and so forth and so on, because that is hundreds of

         24  people now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. BIBERMAN: Good afternoon. I'm

          3  Nancy Biberman. I'm President of the Women's Housing

          4  and Economic Development Corporation, WHEDCo. We're

          5  located in the Bronx, which regrettably is the

          6  poorest urban county in the United States.

          7                 I'm deviating from my script today,

          8  which I passed out. I've been sitting here for two

          9  and three-quarters hours, but I've learned a lot

         10  actually. I'm glad I came. Because I've learned

         11  actually that some of the frustration that we

         12  experience as an organization which develops

         13  housing, affordable housing, which works with

         14  families who come from the shelter system and who

         15  need, you know, relocation into private housing, we

         16  do workforce development, we have no relationship

         17  with the Department of Small Business Services, we

         18  do it under contract with HRA, and only for people

         19  who are on public assistance. And, so, the mandate

         20  of that contract has nothing to do with good jobs

         21  and career ladders, it has to do with getting people

         22  off of welfare.

         23                 And, you know, the other programs we

         24  are kind of on the positive side of what is an issue

         25  that I think really needs to be addressed. We looked
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          2  at economic development as a family affair. We don't

          3  think that there's an adult who can get or stay in

          4  the workforce unless there's quality child care

          5  available, so we operate a Headstart program for 104

          6  children. Headstart is about to be cut two percent

          7  across the Board throughout the City. We run a

          8  family day care Micro Enterprise Program and it's

          9  140 trained business women, care for children in

         10  their own homes. These women have collectively

         11  generated in the past year $4.8 million, that

         12  averages out to about $30,000 per provider, caring

         13  between seven- and eight-hundred children so that

         14  those parents can go to work.

         15                 We have a commercial kitchen, which

         16  is a business incubator. We've got 20 businesses

         17  operating in this kitchen now. It's got a 24/7

         18  capacity, but it is underutilized.

         19                 So, we try to run the gamut, and we

         20  have another new affordable housing development

         21  that's breaking ground in several weeks in the

         22  Bronx, and which will be the first building in the

         23  City which is affordable, green and wired, and by

         24  that I mean high speed Internet access to every

         25  single apartment, and these apartments are for
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          2  formerly homeless families, working poor families,

          3  and young people aging out of foster care.

          4                 Economic development is a very

          5  complex issue. It's not about, you know, simply the

          6  Atlantic Terminal Market, it's about getting people

          7  who have significant barriers to employment into the

          8  workforce. And I have to say that we have, despite

          9  the workforce career centers, there are very limited

         10  views to organizations like mine. We don't see

         11  people from those centers, we do work on Saturdays

         12  and we do work off hours, and I really think it

         13  would be extremely important for the initiative that

         14  the Mayor announced today, the Economic Opportunity

         15  Initiative, the meeting that I attended at Gracie

         16  Mansion on Friday, hosted by Deputy Mayor Gibbs,

         17  there needs to be coordination between the agencies

         18  that deal with economic development, whether it's

         19  HPD, HRA, DHS, and this agency, you know, everybody

         20  has different standards for what it means to be poor

         21  in New York. So, I think it would be great if people

         22  could get on the same page and if this Committee can

         23  kind of participate with health and human services,

         24  towards the end of really providing economic

         25  opportunity, along the lines of my colleague from
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          2  United Way.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

          4                 MR. GAMBLE: Good afternoon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Good afternoon.

          6                 MR. GAMBLE: I would just like to say

          7  before I start, I have a written copy of my remarks,

          8  if I can submit that to the Committee, that would be

          9  fine.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

         11                 MR. GAMBLE: In the event that I don't

         12  finish all of my remarks.

         13                 My name is Keith Gamble, and I'm a

         14  Board member, an active member of Community Voices

         15  Heard. Today I'm here to try to put a bit of a human

         16  face on all of the numbers and figures drafted in

         17  the budget proposal for economic development and

         18  workforce development.

         19                 Today I'm here to tell you that right

         20  now as it stands we feel that there is a profound

         21  disconnect between economic development, that the

         22  City seems so determined to make happen, and

         23  workforce development. And we also feel that nothing

         24  in the proposed budget seems to begin to remedy this

         25  problem.
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          2                 As the proposed budget shows, the

          3  Mayor has made clear his determination for economic

          4  development as a priority in the City.

          5                 The City will continue to invest in

          6  large scale real estate development to accommodate

          7  more businesses coming into the City, and this is

          8  very important. And I'm not here to say that that

          9  shouldn't be done.

         10                 The problem is that the City isn't

         11  realizing that the potential to connect this

         12  economic development to the City's workforce.

         13                 While the City itself benefits from

         14  this development, and that could be debatable, the

         15  City's poorest inhabitants are left behind. New York

         16  City needs to be making it a point to connect the

         17  large pool of potential workers with this economic

         18  development and pushing developers to create good,

         19  family-sustaining jobs and invest in training of its

         20  workers to fill these jobs.

         21                 As our City continues to grow in

         22  development, we, the City's workforce, are being

         23  left in its wake.

         24                 There's a large group of

         25  underemployed and underpaid New York residents who
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          2  should be the ones benefitting from the City's focus

          3  on economic development. But sadly, that doesn't

          4  seem to be the case, and unfortunately, the money

          5  this City does budget for workforce development

          6  isn't being used, we feel, again, in the most

          7  effective manner.

          8                 The services that the City budgets

          9  for workforce development, we are finding is

         10  lacking.

         11                 For example, recently I went to the

         12  Brooklyn Workforce One Center and I felt that I

         13  spent too much time sitting, waiting, time that I

         14  felt could have been used in actual job search and

         15  training, or accessing training and education.

         16                 I should also stress that this time

         17  waiting was mostly for orientation.

         18                 Other, again, I have spoken with many

         19  other members of CVH who have also gone through the

         20  Workforce One Centers, and they have had very

         21  similar experiences. Too much time waiting, not

         22  enough time spent accessing job search or any other

         23  services.

         24                 You walk into the office and fill out

         25  an application, it takes forever. It takes another
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          2  couple of weeks to get an interview, it takes

          3  another two to three weeks to get called for an

          4  assessment. Some sites provide absolutely no case

          5  management or referrals. Again, this is all feedback

          6  we've been receiving.

          7                 With all the economic development

          8  that's supposedly creating jobs for people, why

          9  can't these sites find jobs for the people who need

         10  them?

         11                 Another problem, and this is probably

         12  the most serious problem that I really want to

         13  stress here, is the complete lack of language

         14  accommodation at these centers.

         15                 I've heard this complaint

         16  specifically from many of the people who have gone

         17  to the Workforce One Center site in Harlem. At this

         18  site, between Washington Heights and Spanish Harlem,

         19  there is absolutely no language accommodation. And

         20  it is a true failure that in Harlem, where a large

         21  portion of the neighborhood is made up of

         22  Spanish-speaking residents, that language

         23  accommodation is not made readily available for

         24  them.

         25                 In my own experience at the Brooklyn
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          2  site, there were at least people that I noticed who

          3  spoke mostly Russian, and they had to rely on people

          4  around them to fill out the paperwork.

          5                 Why hasn't this City budgeted money

          6  to accommodate these people trying to get skills and

          7  job training?

          8                 Again, this lack of connection

          9  between economic development and workforce

         10  development is made abundantly clear when we look at

         11  the type of jobs people are being steered to through

         12  these workforce sites.

         13                 People that are being directed to

         14  these Workforce One Centers and the employment

         15  centers and placement centers, which are mandated

         16  for welfare recipients, are being placed at or

         17  slightly above minimum wage jobs.

         18                 If the money budgeted for workforce

         19  development is steering people towards jobs that

         20  can't guarantee a living wage, the fundamental

         21  issues of poverty, or more specifically, moving

         22  people out of poverty are not addressed.

         23                 However, if the City made a larger

         24  effort to tie its efforts to economic development,

         25  to workforce development, perhaps we could start
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          2  steering people towards jobs that can actually

          3  support poor New Yorkers and their family

          4  comfortably.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, Mr. Gamble,

          6  I have your written statement.

          7                 MR. GAMBLE: Okay. If my time is done,

          8  that's fine. That's why I submitted my written

          9  remarks.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I appreciate it.

         11                 MR. GAMBLE: That's okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And this is quite

         13  helpful.

         14                 MR. GAMBLE: Again, I just want to

         15  thank the Committee for allowing me this time to

         16  give testimony.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I thank you for

         18  your patience and your participation.

         19                 Just a few very quick questions.

         20                 Mr. Johnson, the $10 million program,

         21  or the $10 million allocation, I guess, at this

         22  point, that was adopted last year; I heard your

         23  testimony, and I agree really with what you're

         24  saying, where are we now in this? Is this out in the

         25  field yet?
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes. Programs have

          3  started. The soft launch date was January 6, and the

          4  hard launch was February 1st. We're starting to now

          5  record the actual metrics.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: How do these

          7  relate to the programs funded under WIA? In other

          8  words, are the programs that you're funding largely

          9  the same programs funded under WIA? Are they

         10  different? Is it sum and sum?

         11                 MR. JOHNSON: Out of the 31

         12  collaborations, these collaborations are made mostly

         13  of small CBOs, some are larger sizes, actually 75

         14  organizations that are participating in NYC Works, I

         15  would say a small percentage, maybe a quarter, maybe

         16  a third, are also funded under the WIA contracts

         17  with Department of Small Business Services.

         18                 It was our goal to reach out to a lot

         19  of the grassroot organizations and smaller CBOs that

         20  often time do not have the specificity or the

         21  infrastructure to apply for government funding, and

         22  by joining together in a collaborative model, are

         23  able to access dollars through the City Council.

         24                 So, the answer to the question, some

         25  of them are WIA contractors, but the large majority
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          2  are not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Were you here for

          4  my session with Commissioner Walsh and his staff

          5  about the reported efficacy of the WIA contractors?

          6                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Are those numbers

          8  correct?

          9                 MR. JOHNSON: I don't know if I'm in a

         10  position to confirm that or not.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Probably not.

         12                 MR. JOHNSON: Probably not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: They're extremely

         14  high.

         15                 MR. JOHNSON: If it's true, it's

         16  phenomenal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Right.

         18                 Do you have targets for the programs

         19  that you funded?

         20                 MR. JOHNSON: Well, yes. And also, how

         21  our program differs from WIA. WIA comes with very

         22  stringent requirements. Other than meeting the

         23  targeted areas that we found most in need by some

         24  research provided by NYU's Women of Color Policy

         25  Network, we've projected that we were going to
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          2  enroll approximately 6,500 individuals into jobs,

          3  and also there is going to be a larger group of

          4  approximately nine to ten-thousand that will receive

          5  other services outside of just employment services.

          6  Services such as educational attainment, increase in

          7  benefits, helping the underemployed become better

          8  employed.

          9                 I don't have those numbers in front

         10  of me of how many people we project that will

         11  actually be placed, but there are hard metrics in

         12  place where individuals must be placed in jobs and

         13  retained for the three-month, six-month and 12-month

         14  milestone.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay.

         16                 Well, thank you for undertaking this,

         17  by the way.

         18                 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you. It's our

         19  pleasure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I look

         21  forward to hearing how it's going as we start to see

         22  some more, as we start to see results or we see how

         23  it's going, I look forward to hearing how it is.

         24                 MR. JOHNSON: I hope you're very

         25  successful in allocating money in the future.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Indeed.

          3                 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Ms. Biberman, I

          5  was very interested by your testimony as well. What

          6  did you mean when you said we don't see the people

          7  who go to the workforce centers? What did you mean

          8  by that?

          9                 MS. BIBERMAN: Basically, we are

         10  funded by HRA to work with people who are on public

         11  assistance, and they're called the Special

         12  Populations Program, and Special Populations can be

         13  an ex-offender, it can be someone who has a

         14  substance abuse problem, in our case our Special

         15  Population are homeless families who are living in

         16  shelters. And, so, these are people who are

         17  obviously having a lot of issues to deal with, in

         18  addition to getting a job. We do not have the

         19  capacity to see people who walk in, nobody funds us

         20  to do that, and we don't get referrals. We simply do

         21  not ever, you know, I mean virtually never get

         22  referrals from the Bronx Center.

         23                 I don't know why that is. But I don't

         24  know where they're going, but they're not coming to

         25  community-based organizations like ours.
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          2                 We're not set up to handle them even

          3  if they came because we get rosters of people every

          4  two weeks. We get somewhere between 50 and 75 people

          5  who were sent to us by HRA every two weeks, and our

          6  mandate is to get them out, and get them to work.

          7  And we are paid on a performance basis. We get paid

          8  at job placement, at 30 day, at 60 day at 90 day.

          9                 So, we are exclusively outcome based

         10  and held to pretty revere standards.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: And I'm sorry if

         12  you said this, but I missed, what are your results?

         13                 MS. BIBERMAN: Our results, frankly,

         14  are nowhere near as good as what the -- I heard the

         15  Commissioner's testimony. I would say, you know,

         16  and, again, this is a difficult population, average

         17  literacy levels are eighth grade, both verbal and

         18  math. Obviously these people don't have GEDs, many

         19  of them don't speak English. I mean, the people we

         20  serve in our Headstart program in the Bronx now, in

         21  one Headstart program that serves 104 children, 11

         22  languages are spoken. It's no longer just English

         23  and Spanish, I mean many, many West African

         24  dialects, among others, that are being spoken around

         25  the City, and so it is an enormous endeavor to
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          2  really help these families, help the children, help

          3  the parents, and what our difficulty is, is an

          4  organization that tries to provide holistic

          5  services, out-of-school time services for children

          6  in our neighboring school, summer programs, adult

          7  workforce programs, kids in Headstart, is that every

          8  single program is a silo, has it's own categorical

          9  eligibility criteria. And so it is extremely

         10  difficult to link the services to a parent with

         11  services to a child.

         12                 Very often the outcomes for parents

         13  are completely dependent on what you can do for

         14  their kid. Can you get him in after school? If you

         15  don't have after school, you can't take a full-time

         16  job. So, it is very challenging work, which is, you

         17  know, why I say that, you know, somebody at the

         18  Workforce One Center who is simply a dislocated

         19  worker, but who otherwise kind of has everything in

         20  order, they have a home, their kids are enrolled in

         21  school, it might not be so difficult, but if people

         22  have language problems, as the gentleman next to me

         23  spoke about, you know, if there are other issues

         24  that are going on in their lives, these are not easy

         25  people to find jobs, and, you know, that's why you
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          2  have unemployment rates as high as they are in

          3  places like the Bronx and other poor communities in

          4  New York. Extraordinarily high unemployment.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I just don't know

          6  this, do you know what's the magnitude? I guess last

          7  year SBS spent something on the order of six

          8  something million for their version of workforce

          9  development, which is both the outside folks who

         10  deal with -- who can pick and choose, and the

         11  Workforce One, which can't; what's the magnitude of

         12  programs like yours, funding for programs like

         13  yours?

         14                 MS. BIBERMAN: I would venture to

         15  guess, but I can't say this for sure, that there's

         16  more funding for programs like mine, simply because

         17  there is a mandate to reduce the welfare rolls, and

         18  so there is, you know, federal welfare reform block

         19  grant funding that comes to the states, that comes

         20  to the cities. But that's different from workforce

         21  development. You know, we have to work in a

         22  different way. It's not the way that I think is a

         23  particularly good way, but it's the only way we

         24  have, unless there are other funds that can be made

         25  available that allow us to sort of knit it together.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: No, your point

          3  about wholeism is plainly correct. You can't ask

          4  people with kids to either take a job or do the

          5  preliminary work necessary to get the job without

          6  child care. That goes without saying. And you can't

          7  even get to that point until you deal with the

          8  language issues and educational issues. Of course

          9  that's correct.

         10                 I want to thank everybody here on

         11  this panel. I know that you persisted and your

         12  comments are extremely helpful and useful, and as we

         13  get going, not just in this year's budget cycle, but

         14  on what I think is going to be our ongoing and

         15  determined effort to improve the City's performance

         16  on workforce development, I hope to be partners.

         17                 MS. BIBERMAN: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

         19  Meeting is adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)

         21                 (The following written testimony was

         22  read into the record.)

         23

         24

         25  Written Testimony Of:
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          2  Ronnie Lowenstein

          3  Director

          4  NYC Independent Budget Office

          5

          6  Analysis of the Mayor's Preliminary Budget for 2007

          7  Department of Small Business Services.

          8

          9                 Preliminary Budget Highlights

         10

         11                 - Governor's Island Preservation and

         12  Education Corporation. The Preliminary Budget

         13  provides $5.0 million in 2007 to support the

         14  corporation's general operating expenses.

         15                 - Compliance with Executive Orders.

         16  The 2007 Preliminary Budget includes increased

         17  funding of $660,000 to assist the agency's

         18  compliance with Executive Orders 50 and 71.

         19                 - Minority- and Women-Owned Business

         20  Enterprise Program. The Preliminary Budget would

         21  increase funding for the minority- and women-owned

         22  business program by $500,000.

         23                 - 311 for Business. The Preliminary

         24  Budget would provide $270,000 in new funding for the

         25  creation of a 311-style information line for

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  business.

          3                 - General Support Reductions. Under

          4  the Preliminary Budget proposal, city tax-levy funds

          5  will be reduced by a total of $1.0 million annually

          6  beginning in 2007. The reductions will be spread

          7  across several DSBS-supported entities, including

          8  NYC & Company and the Mayor's Office of Film,

          9  Theatre, and Broadcasting.

         10                 Expense Budget.

         11                 Agency Overview. The Mayor's

         12  Preliminary Budget proposes $95.1 million for the

         13  Department of Small Business Services in 2007, a

         14  $37.9 million decrease over current spending

         15  projects for 2006. City-funded expenditures are

         16  projected to equal $31.5 million in 2007, or 33.1

         17  percent of the agency's total budget.

         18                 DSBS typically receives a significant

         19  amount of federal aid that is not fully reflected in

         20  the Preliminary Budget. IBO projects DSBS

         21  expenditures for 2007 will equal $99.1 million once

         22  all federal funds are received.

         23                 This estimate does not reflect,

         24  however, potential rollovers of unspent federal

         25  Workforce Investment Act (WIA) funds. While IBO
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          2  expects that some WIA funds will be rolled over from

          3  2006 to 2007, we cannot estimate the size of the

          4  rollover at this time. Much of the variation in the

          5  agency's budget in the past few years can be

          6  explained by these annual rollovers of WIA funds.

          7                 Effects of Key Budget Proposals.

          8                 Governor's Island Preservation and

          9  Education Corporation. The Preliminary Budget

         10  proposes $5.0 million to GIPEC each year beginning

         11  in 2005, when control of the island was transferred

         12  from the federal government to the state- and

         13  city-run Governor's Island Preservation and

         14  Education Corporation.

         15                 The $5.0 million will be used by

         16  GIPEC to maintain the island in its current form.

         17  Once a development plan for Governor's Island has

         18  been selected, however, DSBS expects the amount of

         19  city operating support required will be adjusted to

         20  meet the needs of the specific development plan.

         21                 Compliance with Executive Orders. The

         22  2007 Preliminary Budget includes just over $660,000

         23  in new funding for 2007 to help the Department of

         24  Small Business Services comply with two Executive

         25  Orders.
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          2                 The plan proposes increases of

          3  $35,000 in 2006 and $158,000 in 2007 and each year

          4  thereafter to bolster DSBS's compliance with

          5  Executive Order 50. Executive Order 50, which gives

          6  the agency the authority to monitor Equal Employment

          7  Opportunity compliance and workforce diversity on

          8  both public contracts and certain private commercial

          9  projects receiving public assistance, is

         10  administered by the agency's Division of Labor

         11  Services.

         12                 The Preliminary Budget also includes

         13  $17,000 in 2006 and $510,000 in 2007 for Executive

         14  Order 71, which charges the agency with establishing

         15  a goals-based program for city agencies and their

         16  chief contractors to increase the pool of

         17  minority-and women-owned businesses that are

         18  employed when government contracts are available.

         19  These funds, which decrease to just over $300,000

         20  annually from 2008 to 2010, would support six new

         21  staff members.

         22                 Minority-and Women-Owned Business

         23  Enterprise Program. In addition tot he increased

         24  funding provided to the Minority- and Women-Owned

         25  Business (MWBE) program for Executive Order 71, the
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          2  Preliminary Budget proposes an increase of $513,000

          3  in 2007 and $643,000 in 2008 through 2010 for the

          4  MWBE program. The city funds would maintain current

          5  staffing levels for the MWBE program after private

          6  grant funding, which sustained the program in 2005

          7  and much of 2006, expires.

          8                 311 for Business. The increased

          9  funding of $72,000 for 2006 and $270,000 each year

         10  for 2007 through 2010 would support the creation of

         11  a 311-style information line for businesses. The

         12  funds would support four employees in 2006 and five

         13  employees beginning in 2007. The 311 for business

         14  program will act in a manner similar to 311 for city

         15  residents, providing businesses with one phone

         16  number where they can get all the information they

         17  need about operating a business in New York City.

         18                 The increased funding included in the

         19  2007 Preliminary Budget for the 311 for Business

         20  initiative, the MWBE program, and compliance with

         21  Executive Orders 50 and 71, accounts for the

         22  majority of the increase in overall spending on

         23  direct business assistance.

         24                 With these additions, the budget for

         25  direct business assistance is expected to grow
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          2  significantly.

          3                 In 2005, expenditures for direct

          4  business assistance totaled $3.6 million. Under the

          5  Preliminary Budget, expenditures for 2006 are

          6  expected to grow to $4.4 million, an increase of

          7  21.0 percent over 2005, and then dip in 2007 to $4.2

          8  million. The 2007 figure is likely to rise in future

          9  financial plans, as the slight decrease in funding

         10  from 2006 to 2007 is entirely attributable to

         11  federal funding for street vendor programs that has

         12  not yet been recorded.

         13                 General Support Reductions. Beginning

         14  in 2007, the Preliminary Budget proposes annual

         15  decreases of nearly $600,000 in city funding for two

         16  DSBS-supported entities and $440,000 in annual

         17  reductions to city funds provided for neighborhood

         18  economic development.

         19                 Under the plan, total DSBS support

         20  for NYC & Company (formerly the New York Convention

         21  and Visitors Bureau) would be reduced by 3.3 percent

         22  in 2006, or $234,000 and 7.0 percent beginning in

         23  2007, or $439,000 annually. These changes would

         24  bring the total funding provided to NYC & Company

         25  down from $7.2 million in 2005 to $6.9 million in
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          2  2006 and $6.4 million in 2007.

          3                 The 2007 Preliminary Budget includes

          4  similar reductions - a decrease of 3.3 percent in

          5  2006 and 7.0 percent from 2007 on - to the Mayor's

          6  Office of Film, Theatre and Broadcasting.

          7                 This cut is somewhat offset, however,

          8  by increased funding to support two new positions at

          9  the office.

         10                 Taking these two initiatives as a

         11  whole, total funding for the office is expected to

         12  increase by 11.2 percent in 2006, rising from $1.5

         13  million in 2005 to $1.7 million. In 2007, the

         14  effects of the cut, which grows to 7.0 percent, will

         15  begin outweighing the increased funding for

         16  personnel, with funding projected to decline by 4.8

         17  percent from 2006 to $1.6 million.

         18                 Beginning in 2007, the Preliminary

         19  Budget also calls for a $440,000 annual reduction in

         20  city spending on neighborhood economic development,

         21  specifically to be realized from decreased

         22  empowerment zone funding.

         23                 In addition, the Preliminary Budget

         24  includes a one-time reduction of $522,000 in 2006 to

         25  the budget of another neighborhood economic
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          2  development program, the Office of Industrial and

          3  Manufacturing Businesses.

          4                 With the planned reduction, the

          5  Office of Industrial and Manufacturing Businesses is

          6  exp0ected to receive $3.5 million in funds from DSBS

          7  in 2006. The industrial office did not receive any

          8  funding from DSBS from 2003 through 2005 and there

          9  are no funds currently budgeted for the support of

         10  this office in 2007.

         11                 Despite this proposed cut to the

         12  Office of Industrial and Manufacturing Businesses,

         13  the total budget for neighborhood economic

         14  development programs in 2006 is expected to reach

         15  $19.3 million, a 63.4 percent increase over 2005

         16  expenditures.

         17                 Due to as yet unrecorded federal

         18  funding and these two initiatives - the reduction in

         19  empowerment zone funding and the lack of support for

         20  the Office of Industrial and Manufacturing

         21  Businesses - total funding for neighborhood economic

         22  development programs in 2007 is projected to fall

         23  below 2005 funding levels to $10.4 million.

         24                 Capital Budget.

         25                 Agency Overview. The capital plan
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          2  accompanying the 2007 Preliminary Budget calls fro

          3  $1.95 billion in capital spending on economic

          4  development projects from 2006 through 2009.

          5                 City funds account for $1.77 billion,

          6  or 90.8 percent, of the planned capital

          7  expenditures. Federal funding for the redevelopment

          8  of Lower Manhattan accounts for the bulk of the

          9  non-city capital commitments. The comparable

         10  four-year (2005 through 2008) plan total from a year

         11  ago was $1.76 billion, of which 87.8 percent were

         12  city funds.

         13                 As with the current year, the

         14  majority of the non-city capital funds included in

         15  last year's capital plan were reserved for lower

         16  Manhattan. The nearly $200 million increase in

         17  capital commitments over last year's plan is not

         18  linked to any specific project, rather the funds are

         19  spread across a variety of economic development

         20  projects.

         21                 DSBS manages almost all of the city's

         22  economic development projects, with commercial

         23  development projects accounting for the majority of

         24  the agency's capital commitments. The types of

         25  capital projects supported by DSBS include
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          2  industrial development, market development,

          3  neighborhood revitalization, port development, rail

          4  development, and waterfront development.

          5                 Key Capital Projects.

          6                 Javits Center Expansion. The capital

          7  plan issued with the most recent Preliminary Budget

          8  calls for $350 million in city funds to be

          9  appropriated for the expansion of the Javits Center

         10  in 2007. By far the single largest commitment in the

         11  DSBS capital plan, these funds represent the total

         12  current city commitment to the Javits Center

         13  expansion project.

         14                 Modernization and Reconstruction of

         15  Piers Citywide.

         16                 Under the current plan, $281.8

         17  million will be spent on capital improvements to

         18  piers across the city between 2006 and 2009.

         19                 Just over 60 percent of these funds -

         20  $172.7 million - will be used to upgrade passenger

         21  cruise ship piers and terminals, particularly in

         22  Brooklyn. Other piers slated for modernization and

         23  reconstruction include Hunt's Point and Pier 79 in

         24  midtown Manhattan. The size of the capital

         25  commitment for modernization and reconstruction of
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          2  piers is comparable to last year's four-year

          3  commitment plan, which called for $292.2 million in

          4  funding for these projects.

          5                 Atlantic Yards. As in last year's

          6  plan, the current capital plan calls for $100

          7  million in city funds for site development of

          8  Atlantic Yards. The funds are scheduled for $50

          9  million to be committed for the project in both 2006

         10  and 2007.

         11                 Governor's Island Preservation and

         12  Education Corporation. The capital plan commits

         13  $37.5 million in city capital funds to support

         14  reconstruction projects on Governor's Island in 2006

         15  and 2007.

         16                 GIPEC will use these funds to restore

         17  the infrastructure already on the island. Additional

         18  capital funds for new construction projects are

         19  expected in later capital plans, once a

         20  comprehensive development plan is selected for the

         21  island.

         22                 NOTE: A detailed review of DSBS

         23  spending by program is available on our Web site at

         24  http://www.ibo.nyc.ny.us/iboreports/AgencyBudgets.html.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)
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